


CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001

Prepared by Fiscal Services



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY




City of Bismarck, North Dakota
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Letter of Transmittal

GFOA Certificate of Achievement
Organizational Chart

Listing of City Officials

FINANCIAL SECTION
independent Auditor's Report

General Purpose Financial Statements:

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental
Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and
Actual General and Special Revenue Funds

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes In Retainad Earnings - All Proprietary
Fund Types

Combined Statement of Cash Flows - All
Proprietary Fund Types

Combined Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets-Pension Trust Funds
Notes {o the Financial Statements

Combining, Individual Fund, Account Group Statements and Schedules:

General Fund:
Comparative Balance Sheet

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual

Special Revenue Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Exhibit No.

A-1

B-1

B-2

Page No.

f-1X
X
Xl
Xl

X

1-2

3-4

5-6

8-9
10

11-32

33

34-35

36-37

38-39



Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Debt Service Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Capital Project Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Enterprise Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Eamings

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Eamings

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Trust and Agency Funds:
Caombining Balance Sheet

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances {Expendable Trust Funds)

Combining Statement of Changes In Assets
and Liabilities (All Agency Funds)

Combining Statement of Changes in Plan
Net Assets (Pension Trust Funds)

Account Groups:
Comparative Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Source

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function and Activity
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function and Activity

Schedule of General Long-term Debt

Exhibit No.

B-3

C-1

D-1

D-2

E-1

Page No.

40-49

50-51

52-53

54-55

56-57

58-61

62-63

64-65

66-67

68-69

70-71

72-73

74-75

76

77

78
79
80

81




STATISTICAL SECTION (Not covered by Independent Auditors Report) Table No. Page No.
General Governmental Expenditures and Qther

Financing Uses by Function 1 82
General Governmental Revenues and Other Financing Sources and

General Governmental Tax Revenue by Source 2 83
Property Tax Levies and Collections 3 84
Assessed and Estimated Market Value of Taxable Property 4 85
Property Tax Mill Rates per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation 5 86
Principal “Single Property” Taxpayers 6 87
Special Assessment Collections 7 88
Computation of |egai Debt Margin 8 89
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed

Value and Net Bonded Debt per Capita 9 80
Ratio Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt to

Total General Governmental Expenditures 10 91
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 11 92
Revenue Bond Coverage 12 93
Demographic Statistics 13 94
Property Values, Construction, and Bank Deposits 14 95
Miscellaneocus Statistics 15 QS

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Perfarmed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 97-98

independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and Interna! Control over

Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 99-100
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 101103
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 104

Independent Auditor's Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 105



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY




Fiscal Services March 8, 2002
221 N. 5t St. % PO. Box 5503
Bismarck, ND 58506-5503

The Honorable Mayor,
Members of the City Commission,
And Citizens of Bismarck, North Dakota

The Comprehensive Annual Financlal Report (CAFR) of the City of Bismarck, North Dakota for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2001 is hereby submitted. A complete set of financial statements is presented
in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited by an independent
licensed certified public accounting firm in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards and
applicable laws.

Management is responsible for the accuracy, completeness and, reliability of the financial statements.
Management believes the financial staternents present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
and results of operations of various funds, account groups and component units, including all disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to achieve a full understanding of the City of Bismarck's activities.

CONTENT OF CAFR

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections:

1. Introductory Section: This section is unaudited. It includes this transmittal letter, the City
organizational chart, and a list of principal elecied and appointed officials.

2. Financial Section: This section includes the general-purpose financial statements, the combining
individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, and the independent
auditor’s report.

3. Siatistical Section: This section is unaudited. It includes financial and non-financial data that
presents historical trends and other information about the city on a multi-year basis.

4. Singie Audit Section: This section includes a schedule of federal financial assistance and the
independent auditor's reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity includes all funds and account groups of the primary government, the City of
Bismarck. There are no component units that are defined as legally separate entities for which the
primary government is financially accountable. The City of Bismarck provides a full range of services,
suich as police and fire protection, sanitation services, construction and maintenance of highways, streets
and infrastructure, water and wastewater utility service, solid waste disposal, municipal airport, library,
and cultural centers and events,



GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE

The City operates under a commission form of government, consisting of a President and four
commissioners. The governing commission is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances,
adopting the budge!, appointing committees, the city administrator, and city attorney and hiring
department heads. The city administrator is responsible for carrying out policies and ordinances of the
governing body and for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City. Commission members are
elected fo a four year staggered term with two commission members elected every two years. The
president is elected to a four-year term and also serves as the Mayor of the City.

LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City of Bismarck, incorporated in 1875, is North Dakota's state capitol and is located in the center of
the state in Burleigh County, bounded on the west by the Missouri River. The City currently has a land
area of 27.46 square miles and an estimated population of 55,392, The City is empowered to levy a
property tax on real estate located within its boundaries. The City also has the power by state statute to
extend its corporate limits by annexation, which is done periodically by the governing body of the City.

Aithough the area's largest industry is farming, the City is also a major medicai center for the region. The
City continues to seek economic diversification. To support this effort, the citizens of Bismarck voted to
dedicate a portion of sales tax revenue to be used to attract new business and industry to the City. The
Vision Fund Committee administers this funding and has vielded some positive resuits, which included
the relocation of US HealthCare, Unisys and Sykes offices to Bismarck. The Vision Fund, in conjunction
with Bismarck-Mandan Development Corporation, (BMDAY}, is currently working on a pre-permitting
project to identify suitable sites for high technology production companies. BMDA has enhanced their
web site to provide information to national site consuitants as new corporate locations are evaluated.

An important factor instrumental in attracting new indusiry, business, and families to the Bismarck area is
the exceptionally low crime rate. The City of Bismarck continues {o enjoy one of the lowest crime rates in
the country. Members of the Bismarck Police Department are committed to working with members of our
community to ensure this frend continues. The Police Departiment is also the only accredited Municipal
Law Enforcement agency in the state.

The growth in taxable sales and purchases was 4.84% through the third quarter of 2001 as compared to
the same period in 2000 for Bismarck. This growth is evidenced by the 4.49% increase in sales tax and
4 84% increase in the motel, restaurant and liquor tax in the year 2001.

New construction continues to expand the tax base. In 2001, 217 building permits were issued for
residential construction within the City's corporate limits. This included 184 single-family homes and 33
multi-family homes, which provided an additional 453 residential units. Residential construction in the
Clty's extraterritorial jurisdiction and the adjacent zoned areas of Burleigh County also continues to grow
with a total of 194 single-family building permits issued in 2001

Bismarck continues to experience growth in its tax base through both property value enhancement and
new construction. Growth in the property tax base for the year 2001 was 5.27%. The table below
provides the percentage change by property classification.

2001 2000 Percentage
Property Class Market Value  Market Value Change
Commercial $ 766,745,200 $§ 730,592,400 495 %
Reslidential 1,447,672,900 1,372,891,300 545 %
Agricultural 646,400 781,900 (17.33) %

Total $ 2,215,064,500 $2,104,265,600 527 %
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The City has also implemented additional measures to support continued growth of the tax base. The
Walkway Committee and Renaissance Zone Development Plan are activities that have been established
to revitalize areas of community which are experiencing declining property values.

MAJOR INITIATIVES 2001 AND FUTURE YEARS

Over the past several years, the City has reviewed its building needs and has authorized the design and
construction of new facilities and the renovation of existing buildings.

The design of a new Public Works facility at 601 South 26" Street was com pleted in February in 2001
The new building wili comprise 113,518 square feet with additional space provided for salt storage facitity.
The bids were let In March 2001 and construction began in the spring. The estimated cost of the building
is $10 .8 million with funding provided by the Water and Sewer and Solid Waste utilities. The construction
of the building is scheduled for completion in the fall of 2002.

Preliminary building designs were initiated for a new terminal at the Municipal Alrport. The designs also
included a new entrance/exit roadway and parking lat system. The City Commission has set the total
funding for the project at $24.2 million doltars. The Federal Aviation Administration will provide
approximately 70% of the construction funding with the balance from Airport revenues and $1 million from
the City Motel/Liquor/Restaurant tax. Federal funding in the amount of $1.5 million has already been
provided for the design of the new terminal. Final authorization of the design is scheduled for the spring
of 2002.

As a result of ground water infiltration in the basement of the Law Enforcement Center, the Combined
Communications/Emergency Management Office was forced to relocate it functions within the facility.
The retocation of the office was temporary and the City has evaluated several alternative options
including new construction and the renavation of existing buildings. Final selection of a facility is
expected in the spring of 2002. Funding for the building relocation is included in the Sales Tax
Community Betterment Program in 2002.

The Police Department also reviewed several alternatives for providing additional building space. The
alternatives included renovation of the old Public Works Building and expansion/remodeling of the Law
Enforcement Center. Due {o the cost associated with converting the Public Work Building, utilizing the
current Center was considered the most feasible option. The renovation of the Center will be done in
phases starting with the remodeling of the basement in the spring of 2002.

The Fire Department has also evaluated the need for an additional fire station. Due o the growth in the
northern part of the City, a new station is needed to provide for overall fire protection and adequate
response time. Preliminary cost of a new station is estimated to be approximately $900,000. Funding for
the new fire station is also included in the Sales Tax Community Betterment in 2002,

The Commission will continue to review all their building needs and develop sound financial plan to
provide funding to support all the facility requirements.

DEPARTMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The City Commission continued #s support of the Lewis & Clark 2004-2006 Bicentennial Celebration by
authorizing its financial support of the local Lewis & Clark Committee. The Commission has also
designated $750,000 of the Sales Tax Community Betterment Program to provided funding for future
Lewis & Clark projects to assist in the promotion of this event in the City and the State.

The City evaluated the needs for a new financial and human resources management system. An RFP
was prepared in consultation with GFOA for the implementation of a new system in the spring of 2001. A
contract with New World Systems to purchase the new software was authorized in the fall. The new
software provides a comprehensive range of financial and human resources services that include
financial reporting capabilities that meet the new Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 34
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requirements. The new system, which will also be utilized by Burleigh County, will be implemented in
2002,

In the summer of 2001 the Foundation of the Bismarck Public Library launched a major $1 million
endowment campaign for the purchase of new books and operational support of informational
programming. By year-end the total cash and pledges approximated $400,000. The plan is to complete
the campaign by mid 2002, The Library was also a recipient of a Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation
equipment grant in the amount of $15,000. The grant provided funding for additional technological
equipments that enabled more user access to library and Intemet resources.

In the fall of 2000, Human Resources initiated a "Business Partners Training Program” for City
employees. This program provides numerous training courses in the areas of computer software
programs, internet, professional management and communications. The departmental cost was $5.50
per session and the City had 326 participants in the first year of the program. Human Resources also
organized a new citywide safety commitiee. The mission of the Committee is to study, develop
recommendations and review matters pertaining to the occupational safety and health of city employees
in an effort to empower those employees to create a safe and healthy work environment.

The Public Works Depariment started an Electronics Recycling Program. This new program gives
Bismarck residents and businesses the opportunity to dispose of electronic equipment by having the
items recycled. [n 2001 over 3,000 pounds of electronic items were collected. in addition, Public Works
also had its first Household Hazardous Waste Roundup. This program, in conjunction with a local
contractor, HPC Inc., provided residents a chance to properly dispose of paints and other chemicals.
These programs are Intended to keep such items out of the landfill so the air, soil and water are not
contaminated.

The City Commission authorized a contract with iNet Technologies to develop a new web site for the City

of Bismarck. The web site was designed to provide a positive image of the City and give citizens Internet

access to information on city services. All departments have consistent sections that are easily updated to
provide users with the latest news and infermation.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BUDGET: The City adopis an annual appropriated budget approved by the City's governing body. This
budget is normally adopted by October 1* for the upcoming year. Activities of the General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget in accordance with the N.D.C.C
and the City of Bismarck's Home Rule Charter. Budgets are prepared at the detailed level although the
level of budgetary contral is established at the department level. Department heads may transfer
appropriations within a department. Commission approval Is needed to transfer apprapriated funds from
one fund to another fund. The entire budget can only be amended by ordinance and with commission
approval. The City also maintains an encumbrance system as a technique of accomplishing budgetary
control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end. All charges for fees and services are reviewed and
adjusted at the time of budget approval by the governing board. A five year capital projects budget is also
updated and approved by the governing board.

INTERNAL CONTROL: Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
framewark. Internal control is designed to provide reasonable and not absolute assurance regarding:

1. The safeguarding of assets against loss, theft, or misuse, and
2. The reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability
for assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of control should not outweigh the benefits
derived and that the valuation of cost and benefits require management’s judgment and estimates.
Management believes that the City's internal contral aver financial reporting provides reasonable
assurance of proper recording and assets are adequately safeguarded.
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AUDIT: State statutes and local ordinances require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants. The firm of Eide Bailly LLP was selected by the Cily's audit committee to audit the financial
statements of the City of Bismarck. The audit provides reasonable assurance about whether the financial
staternents are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. Eide Bailly LLP concluded that the audit provides a reasonable
basis for an unqualified opinion and the City of Bismarck’s financial statement for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2001 are in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The
auditor's report is presented in the financial section of this report.

Federal funds received by the City are also subject to an independent audit under the requirements of the

Singe Audit Act of 1896 and Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. The Auditor's reports and
results of this audit are contained in the Single Audit Section of this financial repart.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS AND GENERAL FUND BALANCE

The following schedule presents a summary of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt
Service Funds revenues and operating transfers in for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Amount of Percent of

2001 Percent 2000 Percent increase Increase

Revenues and Transfers Amount of Total Amount of Total  (Decrease) (Decrease)
Taxes $ 18,898,071 3080% § 17,350,280 40.14% § 1,547,782 892 %
Licenses and permits 991,339 2.09% 806,014 1.86% 185,325 2289 %
Special assessments 5,062,951 10.69% 4,596,572 10.63% 466,372 10.15 %
intergovernmental 7,374,184 15.56% 6,135,482 14.19% 1,238,702 20,19 %
Charges for services 4,246,430 B.96% 4,362,725 10.09% (116,295) (2.67) %
Fines and Forfeits 958,229 2.02% 914,156 2.11% 44,073 482 %
Investment income 2,055,685 4.34% 2,002,559 4.63% 53,126 265 %
Land/Equipment/Building Sales & Rental 403,250 {.85% 339,061 0.78% 64,189 18.93 %
Miscellanecus 41,613 0.09% 42,895 0.10% {1.282) (2.98) %
Operating transfers in 7,345,351 15.50% 6,675,710 15.44% 669,641 1003 %
Total $ 47,377,103 100.00% § 43,225463 100.00% $ 4,151,640

Revenue Discussion:

The largest dollar value increase came from real estate tax on property. Although the mill levy for real
estate tax has remained stable, the property values have increased. The increase in intergovernmental
revenue is attributed to increased state and federal grants and state shared revenues. The decrease in
charges for services was due to the loss of revenue from the Bismarck Airport when it privatized its
firefighter services.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service
Funds expenditures and operating transfers out for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.



Amount of Percent of

2001 Percent 2000 Percent Increase Increase

Expenditures and Transfers Amount of Total Amount of Total  (Dsecrease)  (Decrease)
Current:

General Government § 5,813,883 1400% $ 5,353,173 13.27% § 460,720 8861 %

Public Safety 9,759,129  23.50% 9,257,992  22.94% 501,137 541 %

Highways and Streets 4,489,716 10.81% 4,146,253 10.28% 343,463 B2B %

Health and Welfare 857,895 207% 790,492 1.96% 67,403 853 %

Culture and Recreation 3,210,837 7.73% 3,183,076 7.89% 27,761 0.87 %
Capital Cutlay 1,086,027 2.62% 2,014,483 4.99% (928,456)  (46.09) %
Debt Service:

Principal 5,380,065 12.96% 5,275,001 13.07% 105,064 1.99 %

Interest and Fiscal Charges 2,350,011 5.66% 1,988,451 4,93% 361,560 1818 %
Operating transfers out 8,574,287 20.65% 8,340,418 20.67% 233,869 280 %
Total $ 41,521,860 100.00% $ 40,349,338 100.00% § 1,172,521

Expenditures Discussion:

Expenditure increase in the general government is due in part to the increased number of federal and
state grants  Increased cost for workers compensation for public safety employees and prisoner care
charges account for part of the increase in public safety.

The large decrease in capital outiay is attributed to equipment acquisitions for the library and EH Transit
that were made in 2000 and no like transactions were made in 2001,

OTHER INFORMATION

Proprietary Operations

The following is a two year comparison of financial statistical data for the Airport, Airport Flightline
Operation, Solid Waste Utility, Water and Sewer Utility, Parking Authority Lots, Health Insurance, Liability
insurance and Unemployment Compensation. Closure and post closure costs for the landfill are
recognized as a part of the Solid Waste Utility operating expense. Total operating expenses for all
enterprise funds inciude depreciation.
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Airport Airport Flightline Operation
2001 2000 2001 2000
Total operating revenues "% 22893195 § 2,222,862 $ 754406 § 665,659
Total operating expenses {3,055,530)  {2,501,017) (734,840) {688,732)
Total nonoperating revenues 1,710,647 6,554,911 13,702 18,194
Total nonoperating expenses - - - -
Transfers {42 426) (31,902) {11,278) (8,480)
Net gain {loss) $ 905886 § 6,244,854 $ 21990 § (12,359)

Solid Waste Utility

Water & Sewer Utility

2001 2000 2001 2000
Total operating revenues $ 3,708,190 $ 3,426,390 $ 11,018,706 $ 10,959,257
Total operating expenses (3,045,508)  {2,425,739) (7,557,712)  (6,993,076)
Total nonoperating revenues 440,554 509,368 1,638,652 1,327,219
Total nonoperating expenses - - (B7,983) {49,553)
Transfers (46,841) {894,497) {371,282) 1,361,450
Net gain (loss) § 1,056,304 § 615522 § 5,440,381 §$ 6,605,097

Parking Authority Lots Employee Insurance

2001 2000 2001 2000
Total operating revenues $ 781162 § 751,105 $ 2052460 % 1,857,376
Total operating expenses (773,938) (680,218) {2,035,861) (1,908,912)
Total nonoperating revenues 14,237 15,350 202,141 149,149
Total nonoperating expenses - - - -
Transfers (208,612) (211,913) (28,584) (5,863)
Net gain {loss) §  (187,151) § (125,676) & 100,156 % 91,750

Liability Insurance

Unemployment Compensation

2001 2000 2001 2000
Total operating revenues $ - 3§ - & - % 1,663
Total operating expenses {428,572) (41,509) (11,679) (20,691)
Total nonoperating revenues 240,078 551,655 4,429 6,008
Total nonoperating expenses - - - -
Transfers (24,899) (15,295) 2772 -
Net gain {loss) $ (213,393) § 494,851 ] (4,478) 3 {13,020)

The decrease in non-operating revenues at the Airport reflects the decline in federal and state grants for
projects in 2001

The decrease in Solid Wasle transfers is due to a transfer out that was made for building construction in
2000 and no similar fransfers were made in 2001.

Water and Sewer increase in operating revenues reflect an increase in fees for water sales. The
decrease in transfers is in part atiribuied to a larger one-time transfer that was made in 2000 for building
construction.

All fees, rates and charges are reviewed annually to ensure that the rates continue to be appropriate.
Rates will confinue to be monitored to ensure adequate revenues for the operation of each fund.

Fiduciary Operations

The City of Bismarck participates in three separate defined benefit pension plans. An actuarial study
conducted December 31, 2000, showed an actuarial accrued liability of $23,299,000 for the City
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Employee pension plan, $11,581,000 for the Police pension plan. As of December 31, 2000, 135.7% of
the City pension plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability, 130.6% of the Police pension plan's unfunded
actuarial accrued liability has been funded with net assets available for benefits. The information for the
Firefighters pension plan was not available from the Bismarck Firefighter's Relief Association, an entity
independent of the City of Bismarck that administers the Firefighters pension plan.

Debt Administration

The ratio of general obligation debt to assessed valuation and the amount of general obligation debt per
capita are helpful indicators of the City's debt position to management and the users of this report.

Net Direct Ratio of Debt to Debt per
Year Bonded Debt  Present Assessed Value Capita
2001 3 62,942 0.0001 $ 113

Outstanding general obligation bonds at December 31, 2001, totaled $345,000. in addition the amount of
special assessment bonds outstanding is $36,095,000. Note F of the General Purpose Financial
Statements presents more detailed information about the debt position of the City. Debt issued during
2001 includes $11,870,000 in special assessment bonds. Each of these received an Aa2 rating from
Moodys. These ratings are consistent with previous ratings received from this agency.

Cash Management

All cash balances of the City are invested in investments that are insured or registered or for which
securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. The amount of income earned on the
investments (for the City, the City Employee pension and Police pension) for the fiscal year was
$3,832,471. As of December 31, 2001, the City's investments (exclusive of cash on hand and cash
deposits) of $89,156,654 were invested as follows:

US Government securities $ 38,613,364
Investment in slate investment board pool 34,418,731
Investment in mutual funds (Kemper) 13,315,930

Securities lending short-term collateral
invesiment pool 2,808,629
Total investments $ 89,156,654

Risk Management

The City of Bismarck maintains two self insurance funds. The General Liability fund is structured so that
only expenses relating to covered liabilities of the City are charged against it. It does not provide
comprehensive coverage to City depariments. The Municipal Airport Flightline operation has a private
policy, which covers the general liability of the Airport with a $1,000 deductible.

The City also maintains a medical insurance fund. This fund provides payment of medical ciaims for all
full time City employees and their dependents. This plan has an aggregate stop loss covered through
Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota, for ali claims exceeding $50,000 per individual or $1,946,027 for
the plan year of 2001,

Other risk management achievements include the implementation of a city-wide safety program, which

provides for safety training, and accident prevention techniques. Establishing this program has resulted
in a considerable savings on the City's Workers Compensation premium.
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AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Assaciation of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achlevement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Bismarck for its
comprehensive annual financtal report for the year ended December 31, 2000. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. CAFRs must
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requiremenis,

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to
the GFOA fo determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated services of the
Fiscal Services staff and the various department heads. Appreciation is expressed to all personnel who
assisted and contributed to Its preparation. We acknowledge the thorough and professional manner in
which the audit was conducted by our independent auditors, Eide Ballly LLP. Appreclation is also
expressed to the Mayor and to all members of the City Commission for thelr interest and support in
planning and conducting the financial operation of the City of Bismarck in an exemplary manner
throughout the year.

Respectfully submitted,

Dot Wotorro

Sheila Hillman
Director of Finance
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Certiticate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Bismarck,
North Dakota

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2000

A Certificate of Achlevernent for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
governrent units and public employee retirement
systerns whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Consultants * Certified Public Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Members
of City Council

City of Bismarck

Bismarck, North Dakota

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Bismarck, North Dakota,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001, as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of the city's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
general purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General at the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the City of Bismarck at December 31, 2001, and the results of its operations and cash
flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 8, 2002, on our
considerations of the City of Bismarek's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report
in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements of City of
Bismarck, North Dakota, taken as a whole. The accompanying combining, individual fund and account group
financial statements, supporting schedules and statistical data listed in the table of contents and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the City of Bismarck. Such information,
except for the statistical data marked unaudited, on which we express no opinion, has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

Cide &w} LUP

Bismarck, North Dakota
March §, 2002

1050 East Interstate Ave. » PO Box 1914 * Bismarck, North Dalota 58502-1914 = 701 255 1091 + Fax 701.224 1582
Offices in Arizona, lowa, Minresota, Montana, Novth Daketa and South Dalota — Equal Oppornunity Employer
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

Governmental Fund Types

Spedial Debt
General Revenue Service

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
ASSETS:
Cash and Investments % 13,596,173 $ 13,744,853 % 6,093,502
Cash with Escrow Agent - - 4,794,154
Receivables {Net of Allowances for Uncollectibles):
Taxes 171,523 58,321 9,628
Accounts 869,579 932,725 -
Special Assessments - “ 183,888
Due from Other Funds 108,152 - 5,013,451
intergovernmental - - 932,520
Notes Receivable - 250,000 -
inventories - - -
Prepald ltems - - -
Fixed Assests Held for Resale - - -
Customer Beposits - Restricted - - -
Fixed Assets (Net Whare Applicable,
of Accumutated Depraciaiton} - - -
OTHER DEBITS: :
Amount Availabie in Debt Service Fund - - -
Amount to be Provided {or Retirement
of General Long-term Debt

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 14745427 $ 14,985,899 % 17,937,153

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

LIABILITIES:
Accournts Payable 3 134,875 § 24,763 $ 56,374
Leases Payable - R -
Claims and Judgementis Payable - -
Due to Other Funds - 18,864 -
Due to Employees - - -
Due to Other Entities - - -
Defarred Revenue 119,451 41,697 1,873,639
General Obligation Bonds Payable - - -
Special Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment - - -
Securities Lending Collateral - - -
Customer Deposits - - -
Revenus Bonds Payable - - -
Compensation Benefits Payable - - -
Accrued Closure/Post Closure Costs

TOTAL LIABILITIES 254,326 85,324 - 1,830,013

EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS:
Investment in General Fixed Assets - - -
Contributed Capital - - -
Retained Eamnings:
Unreserved ) - - -
Fund Batances:
Reserved for Debt Sarvice - - 11,212,986
Reserved for Refunding Bonds - - 4,794,154
Fund Balance Reserved for Employee Benefits - -
Reserved for Long-Term Receivable - 260,000 -
Unreserved, undesignated 14,491,101 14,650,575

TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 14,481,104 14,900,575 16,007,140

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 3 14,745,427 $ 14,985,809 $ 17,937,153

Sea Notes to the Financial Stalements




Exhibit 1

Fiduciary

Proprietary Funds Funds Account Groups Totals
General General {Memorandum

Capital Internal Trust & Fixed Long-Term Ondy}

Projects Enlerprise Service Agency Assels Debt 2001
$ 7.270,638 § 33,294,070 $ 5,730,572 $ 51,736,921 $ - 5 - $ 132,366,729
- - - - - - 4,794,154
26,430 - 1,542 24,935 - - 292,379
151,980 564,639 22,671 81,484 - - 2,623,088
- 25,980 - - - - 219,888
- - - 54,852 - - 5,176,455
4,617 - - - - - 937,137
- - - “ - - 250,000
- 44,918 - - - - 44,918
- 24,220 - - - - 24,220
- 20,347 - - . - 20,347
796,152 2,723,303 - 239,500 - - 3,758,955
- 129,250,184 - - 65,205,616 - 194,455,800
- - - - - 16,007,140 16,007,140
- - - - - 31,605,238 31,605,238
$ 8249827 § 165,047,671t $ 5,754,785 $ 52,137,602 $ 65,205,616 $47,612,378 § 392,576,448
$ 560,665 3 1,858,154 $ 189,291 5 38,858 5 - 3 - $ 2,862,980
- 125,258 - - - - 125,258
- - 509,817 - - - 509,817
4,343,964 813,627 - - - - 5,176,455
- - - 14,063,543 - - 14,063,543
- - - 9,165 - - 9,165
26,282 48,617 1,115 18,065 - - 2,128,866
- - - - - 345,000 345,000
- - - - - 36,095,000 36,095,000
- - - 2,707,410 - - 2,707,410
796,152 2,723,302 - 239,500 - - 3,758,954
. - . . - 9,685,000 9,605,000
- 385,131 - - - 1477,378 1,862,508
- 394,206 - - - - 394,206
5,727,063 6,348,205 700,223 17,076,541 - 47,612,378 79,734,163
- - - - 65,205,616 - 65,205,616
- 94,180,346 - - - - 94,180,346
- 65,419,030 5,054,562 - - - 70,473,592
- - - - - - 11,212,986
- - - - - - 4,794,154
- - - 33,978,801 - - 33,978,801
- - - - - - 250,000
2522764 - - 1,082,350 - - 32,746,790
2,622,764 159,588,376 5,054,562 35,061,151 65,205,616 - 312,842,285
$ B249827 § 165947671 $ 5754785 $ 52,137,692 $ 65,205,616 $47,612,378 $ 392,576,448




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Governmental Fund

Special
General Revenue
REVENUES
Taxes $ 7,487,920 § 11,062,889
Licenses and Permits 976,512 14,827
Special Assessments - -
Intergovernmental 3,586,421 3,777,268
Charges for Services 3,031,769 1,214,661
Fines and Forfeits 899,382 58,847
Investment Income 792,180 847,312
Rentals 123,613 279,637
Miscellaneous 14,949 26,664
TOTAL REVENUES 16,912,746 17,282,105
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Governrnent 3,624,831 2,189,062
Public Safety 9,609,498 148,631
Highways and Streets 1,432,959 3,056,757
Health and Welfare 857,895 -
Culture and Recreation 2,024,169 1,186,668
Capital Qutlay 575,421 510,606
Debt Service:
Principal - -
Interest and Fiscal Charges - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,124,773 7,002,724
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,212,027) 10,189,381
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In 3,487,148 554,999
Operating Transfers Out (85,360) (7,762,830)
Proceeds of Refunding Bonds - -
Payment of Refunding Bonds - -
Special Assessment Bond Proceeds - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES) 3,391,788 {7,207,831)
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES 2,179,761 2,081,550
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 12,311,340 11,919,025
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 3 14,491,101 $ 14,900,575

See Notes to the Financial Statements




Exhibit 2

Totals
Types Fiduciary {Memorandum
Debt Capital Expendable Only)
Service Projects Trust 2001

347,262 1,057,885 - 19,955,956

- - - 991,339

5,062,951 842,710 - 5,905,661

10,495 5,225,863 5,000 12,605,047

- - 478,983 4,725,413

- - - 058,229

416,193 268,654 53,224 2,377,563

- 698 258,100 660,048

- 40,441 0,648 91,702

5,836,901 7,436,251 802,955 48,270,958

- - - 5,813,893

- - - 9,759,129

- - 375 4,490,091

- - - 857,885

- - 589,320 3,800,157

- 11,942,674 - 13,028,701

5,380,065 - - 5,380,085

2,350,011 - - 2,350,011

7,730,076 11,942,674 589,695 45,479,942

(1,893,175) (4,506,423) 213,260 2,791,016

3,303,204 2,962,699 24,578 10,332,628
(716,067) {910,678) (102,279) (9,587 ,214)

6,090,880 - - 6,090,880
{1,050,000) - - (1,050,000)

- 5,685,439 - 5,685,439

7,628,017 7,737,460 (77,701) 11,471,733
5,734,842 3,231,037 135,559 14,262,749

10,272,298 {708,273) 946,791 34,741,181

16,007,140 2,622,764 1,082,350 49,003,930




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and Permils
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Investment Income
Rentals
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Streets
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Capital Qutlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING

See Notes o the Financiai Statemants

General Fund

2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
$ 7,860,614 $ 7,487,920 $ 6,196,664
993,275 976,512 802,209
3,421,092 3,586,421 2,848,202
2,837,875 3,031,769 3,267,079
883,000 899,382 852,100
713,204 792,180 857,102
237,139 123,613 163,748
10,600 14,949 14,770
16,056,699 16,912,746 15,001,874
4,878,577 3,624,831 3,373,289
10,078,858 9,609,498 8,765,496
1,595,053 1,432 959 1,356,961
888,052 857,895 790,492
2,086,934 2,024,169 2,047,509
3,472,523 575,421 856,823
22,999,997 18,124,773 17,190,570
(6,043,298) (1,212,027) (2,188,698}
3,295,169 3,487,148 2,932,542
{54,637) (95,360) (174,609)
3,240,532 3,391,788 2,757,933
$ (2,802,766) 2,179,761 669,237
12,311,340 11,742,103
$ 14,491,101 $ 12,311,340




Special Revenue Funds

Exhibit 3

2001 2000

Budget Actual Actual
$ 10,939,273 $ 11,062,889 10,773,960
4,000 14,827 3,805
3,004,846 3,777,268 3,279,415
940,620 1,214,661 1,095,646
53,000 58,847 62,056
504,800 847,312 832,025
351,036 279,637 175,313
96,500 26,664 28,185
15,984,175 17,282,105 16,050,405
3,715,422 2,188,062 1,979,884
191,581 149,631 492 496
3,447,356 3,056,757 2,789,292
1,265,095 1,186,668 1,135,567
572,287 510,606 1,157,660
9,181,741 7,092,724 7,554,899
6,792,434 10,189,381 8,495,506
455,982 554,999 1,143,347
(7,889,473) {7,762,830) (7,037,345)
(7,433,491} {7,207,831) (5,893,998)
$  (641,057) 2,981,550 2,601,508
11,919,025 8,317,517
$ 14,800,575 11,919,025




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKCTA
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Employer Contributing
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of Sales and Services
Administration
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (L.OSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Intergovernmental
Special Assessments
Gain on Disposal of Assets
Investment Income
Taxes
Interest Expense

Miscellaneous
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

OPERATING TRANSFERS
Transfer From Other Funds
Transfer (To) Other Funds
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS

NET INCOME

DEPRECIAITON ON ASSETS ACQUIRED
WITH CAPITAL GRANTS

RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING

RETAINED EARNINGS - ENDING

See Notes to the Financial Statements

Exhibit 4

Totals
Proprietary Fund Types {Memorandum

Internal Only)

Enterprise Service 2001
$ 19,455,659 3 - $ 19,455,659
- 2,052,460 2,052,460
19,455,659 2,052,460 21,508,119
9,668,754 2,475,086 12,143,840
816,208 1,026 917,234
4,582,567 - 4,582 567
15,167,529 2,476,112 17,643,641
4,288,130 (423,652) 3,864,478
1,663,732 132 1,663,864
266,972 - 266,972
17,441 - 17,441
1,724,992 437,178 2,162,170
- 2,197 2,197
(43,328) - (43,328)
- 16,586 16,586
3,629,809 456,093 4,085,902
7,917,839 32,441 7,950,380
48,139 8,004 56,143
(728,578) (53,483) (782,061)
(680,439) (45,479) (725,918)
7,237,500 (13,038) 7,224,462
1,276,078 - 1,276,078
56,905,452 5,067,600 61,973,062
$ 65,419,030 $ 5,054,582 $ 70,473,592




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Totais
Proprietary Fund Types {Memorandum
Internat Only)
Enterprise Service - 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received From Customers and Uisers $ 20,885,702 $ 7,255 $ 20,892,957
Cash Received From Employer - 2,037,082 2,037,092
Cash Paid to Suppliers (6,861,066} {2,306,835) {9,167,801)
Cash Paid to Employees (3,556,690) - {3,556,690)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10,467,846 (262,488) 10,205,458
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ‘
Miscellangous ‘ - 16,586 16,586
Taxes - 2,197 2,197
In Lieu of Taxes - 132 132
Intergovernmentat Revenue 1,663,732 - 1,663,732
Transfers From Other Funds 48,139 8,004 56,143
Transfers (to) Other Funds (728,578) {53,483) (782,061)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 983,293 {(26,564) 956,729
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Lease Payment (125,258) - {125,258)
interest Paid (43,328) - {43,328)
Proceeds From Sale of Fixed Assets 17,441 - 17 441
Purchase of Fixed Assets (277,5186) - (277.516)
Construction (11,338,275) - {11,338,275)
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (11,766,936) - (11,766,936)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 1,724,882 437,178 2,162,170
NET CASH PROVIDED
BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,724,992 437,178 2,162,170
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,408,285 148,126 1,557,421
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING 31,884,775 5,582,446 37,467,221
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING $ 33,294,070 3 5,730,572 $ 39,024,642

See Notes to the Financial Statements



CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

REPORTED IN THE BALANCE SHEET AS FOLLOWS:
Cash and Investments

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (L.oss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense
(Increase) decrease in Taxes Receivable
(Increase) decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) decrease in Due From Other Funds
(Increase) decrease in Inventories
(Increase) decrease in Prepaid ltems
Increase (decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (decrease) in Deferred Revenue
increase (decrease) in Estimating Pending Claims
Increase {decrease) in Due to Other Funds
Increase (decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
Increase {dacrease) in Closure/Post Closure Costs
Total Adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH CAPITAL ACTIVITIES:
Contributions of fixed assets from government

Construction of Fixed Assets Contributed
through Capital Project Funds

See Notes to the Finaaclat Staiements

Exhibit 5

Totals
Proprietary Fund Types {Memorandum
internat Only)
Enterprise Searvice 2001
$ 33,294,070 $ 5,730,572 $ 39,024,642
4,288,130 (423,652) 3,864,478
4,582,567 - 4,582,567
- 2,645 2,645
282,105 (16,472) 265,633
1,147,938 - 1,147,038
54,422 - 54,422
12,376 - 12,376
125,623 (14,117} 111,508
- (2,309) {2,309)
- 191,417 191,417
{103,207} - (103,207)
(4,928) - {4,928)
82,920 - 82,920
6,179,816 161,164 6,340,280
$ 10,467,946 3 {262,488) $ 10,205,458
3 29,012 $ - $ 29,012
% 264,628 $ - 3 264,628




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

ADDITIONS
CONTRIBUTIONS:
Employer
Employee
INVESTMENT INCOME:
L.oss on Investments
Interest and Dividends
Securities Lending Income

less: Investment Expense

Less: Securities Lending Expenses

Net investment income (loss)
TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS
Administration
Benefits
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:

General Fund

Special Revenue

Capital Projects
Operating Transfers Out:

General Fund

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING
NET ASSETS - ENDING

See Noles to the Financial Statements

Exhibit 6

Totals
(Memorandum
City Police Only)
Pension Pension 2001

$ 375,227 109,231 $ 484,458
436,209 333,736 769,945
(1,206,609) (727,957) (1,934,566)
905,935 430,522 1,336,457
98,191 39,848 138,038
(202,483) (257,587) (460,070)
(77,294) (41,216) (118,510)
{91,597) (37,085} (128,682)
(371,374) {335,888) (707,262)
440,062 107,079 547,141
18,032 12,373 30,405
1,230,411 458,363 1,688,774
1,248,443 470,736 1,719,179

9 3,145 3,154

- 1,562 1,562

3,571 - 3,571
(16,325) (11,458) (27,783)
(12,745) (6,751) {19,496)
(821,126) (370,408) (1,191,534)
23,471,374 11,698,961 35,170,335

$ 22,650,248 11,328,553 $ 33,978,801
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Bismarck was incorporated in 1875. The City operates under a city commission form of
government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety (Police and
Fire), Streets, Sanitation, Health, Culture and Recreation, Public Improvements, Planning and Zoning,
General Administrative Services, Airport Facilities, Solid Waste Collection and Disposal, and Water and
Sewer Utilities.

The financial statements of the City of Bismarck, North Dakota, have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as appiled to governmental units and the
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant of
the City's accounting policles are described below:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes the City's financial statements include all funds and account groups.
There are no component units of the City of Bismarck. Generally, component units are legally separate
organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government {i.e. the City) are financially
accountable. The City would consider an organization to be a component unit if:

1. The City appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body AND
{a) is able to impose its will on that organization OR
{b) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial burdens on the
City; OR

2. The organization is fiscally dependent upon the Cily; OR

3. The nature of the relationship between the City and the organization is such that the
exclusion from the financial reporting entity would render the financial statements of the City
misleading.

B. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accounts of the City are organized in funds and account groups. A fund is an independent fiscal
and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds
according to their intended purpose, and is used by management to demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained
consistently with City Ordinances and the North Dakota Century Code. Account groups are a reporting
device to account for fixed assetls and liabilities of the governmental funds nof recorded directly info
those funds.

1. Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for the City's general government activities. Governmental
fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under a modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
they are susceptible to accrual {i.e., when they are "measurable and available"). "Measurable” means
the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available” means collectible within the current
period or in time fo pay liabilities for the current period. The City considers all revenues available if
they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related liability
occurs, except for non-matured interest on general long-term debt, which is recognized when due, and
compensated absences that are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with
available financial resources.
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Property taxes, cable franchise fees, licenses, interest and special assessments are susceptible to
accrual. Sales tax; Motel, Liquor, Restaurant tax; motor vehicle fees and the 2% Motel tax collected
and held by the state at year end on behalf of the City are also recagnized as revenue. Qther receipts
become measurable and available when billed on the accounts receivable system.

Shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if susceptible to accrual. Expenditure-
driven grants are recognized as revenue when the expenditures have been obligated and all other
grant requirements have been met.

2. Types of Governmental Funds

General Fund - The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of general government, except those required to be accountad for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service funds account for the servicing of the general iong-term debt that
is not financed by proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds.

Capital Projects Funds - The capital projects funds account for the acquisition of fixed assets and/or
construction of major capital projects that are not being financed by proprietary funds,

3. Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Using this method, the revenues are recorded as earned and expenses
are incurred at the time of the encumbrance of the liability.

The City's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No. 20,
*Accounting and Financlal Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting.” The City accounts for its Proprietary activities in accordance with all
applicable GASB pronouncements, as well as pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Stan dards
Board (FASB) and its predecessors issued on or before November 20, 1989, unless those
proncuncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Proprietary funds include the following fund types:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used for those operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business or where the board decides the fees to be charged and the net
income necessary for management accountability.

Internal Service Funds - Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other
departments of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis,

4, Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held an behalf of cutside parties, including other
governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government in the form of a formal frust agreement.

Expendable Trust - The expendable trust fund is accounted for in almost the same manner as the
governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. These trust
funds account for assets where both principal and interest may be spent.

Nonexpendable Trust Fund - The pension frust fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as
proprietary funds, using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. The pension trust
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funds account for the assets of the police and city employees pension plan. The nonexpendable trust
funds account for assets where both principal and interest may not be spent.

Agency Fund - The agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations in this
report or have a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for by using the modified accrual
basis of accounting. These funds are used to account for assets that the City holds for others in an
agency capacity.

5. Account Groups

General Fixed Asset Account Group - The general fixed asset account group is used o account for
fixed assets not accounted for in proprietary or trust funds.

General Long-term Pebt Account Group - The general long-term debt account group is used to account
for general long-term debt and other liabilities that are not a specific liability of proprietary or trust funds
of the City.

C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY

1. Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Invesiments are stated at fair market value.

2, Receivables and Payables

Buring the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other
funds” or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

Property value is assessed as of the second Tuesday in Apnl of each year. The property taxes are
levied and attached as an enforceable lien by January 1" of the preceding year. A 5% discount is
allowed if payment is received by February 18", The tax levy is divided into two payments due March
1% and October 15" Penalty and interest is assessed on any delinquent payment.

3. Inventories

inventories are valued at cost, using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental
fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased. These amounts are immaterial.

4, Prepaid items

The Enterprise Funds record any payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods
heyond December 31, 2001, as prepaid items. The cost of services to governmental type funds is
recorded as an expenditure when paid rather than the benefited period.

5. Fixed Assets

General fixed assels are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital
acquisitton and construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and the related
assets are reported in the general fixed assets account group. All purchased fixed assets are valued at
cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical
records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
received.
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The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the
ramaining useful lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable.

The City does not report public domain or "infrastructure” fixed assets, roads, cutbs, gutters, sidewalks,
streets, street lights, and similar assets that are immovable and of value only to the governmental unit
in the general fixed asset account group. All infrastructure fixed assets are reported in the proprietary
fund types and depreciation is computed using the straight-ine method.

Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. Depreciation of all exhaustible
fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as depreciation expense against their operations.
Depreciation recognized on grants, entitlements, and shared revenues is closed to the related
contributed capital. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful life, using the siraight-
line method, as follows:

Buildings 20 - 50 Years
Improvements other than buildings 25 - 50 Years
Small equiprment 2-10 Years
Heavy equipment 5-10 Years

6. Compensated Absences/Termination Benefits
Sick Leave

A new plan for compensated absences commenced on December 31, 1992, It established a maximum
number of accumulated sick leave hours that could be accrued. The maximum hours for employees
working a forty-hour work week is 960 and the maximum hours of accumulated sick leave is 1272 for
all employees working a 53-hour workweek. Excess sick leave will be paid to all employees at a rate of
forty percent of their excess hours over 960/1272 annually. These payments will be made out of the
fund in which the liability occurs.

On December 31, 1992 the outstanding accumulated sick leave hours of all employees having over
860/1272 hours were reduced by twenty five percent. The number of reduced hours multiplied by their
rate of pay per hour, became the amount of pay the employee will receive at termination of their
employment. if the employee had less than 960/1272 hours they were given an option, to either
reduce their hours by twenty five percent or retain the hours in order to reach the 960/1272 maximum
at a faster pace. [f they chose the option to reduce their hours, this number was multiplied times their
rate per hour fo establish the amount of compensation they will receive at termination.

The total amount of compensation is funded by an annual departmental contribution at the rate of ten
percent of the total for ten years or unti! such time the fund is sufficient to fully meet the obligation. The
funds will be held in an agency fund until all employees employed on December 31, 1992 will have
terminated their employment. The §$185,214 in the Deferred Compensation Payable in the General
Long term Debt Account Group is the amount owed by the governmental funds. The proprietary funds
are obligated for an additional $54,853.

Annual Leave

The annual leave plan allows employees o accrue annual leave with pay based on their years of
service with the City as follows:
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0 -3 years 96 hours per year
4 -7 years 120 hours per year
8 -12 years 144 hours per year
13 - 18 years 168 hours per year
over 18 years 192 hours per year

Fire employees who have a regular workweek in excess of forty hours per week are granted annual
leave at a rate adjusted to take into account the extra hours so their annuat leave is comparable to the
leave granted for forty hour per week employees,

Annual leave accrued during the calendar year may be accumuiated but shall in no case exceed a total
of 360 hours for all employees except fire employees who work a regular work week in excess of forly
hours, may accumulate 477 hours. On January 1 of each year all excess leave is forfeited without
compensation.

Regular part-time employees shall earn a prorated number of vacation days payable at their current
rate of compensation.

At the time of the employee’s termination of empioyment, the unused hours are paid fo him at his
current rate of pay. The hours will be paid up to 360 hours for regular employees and 477 hours for
firemen.

All of the accumulated hours are brought to the current rate of pay on December 31, to establish the
value in the funds. The amount in the compensated absences line item $1,292,164 is the value of the
employees annual leave hours on December 31, 2001. In proprietary funds, compensated absences
are expensed when earned. The entire amount of unpaid compensated absences is reported as a fund
liability.

7. Long-term Obligations

The government funds recognize long-term debt as a liability in the general long-term debt account
group. For other obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available
financial resources are reporied as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of
stich obligations are reported in the general long-term debt account group. Long-term liabilities and
other obligations expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those
funds.

Long-term liabilities are being repaid from the following funds:

Obligation Fund
General Obligation Bonds Highway Construction
Highway Construction Debt Service Fund
Revenue Bonds Motel Liquor Restaurant
Motel Liquor Restaurant Bonds Tax Fund
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Sales Tax Revenue Fund
Special Assessment Bonds Watermains, Sewermains, Sidewalks,

Street Improvements, and Parking Lot
Debt Service Funds
Employee Termination Benefits General, Library, and Roads and Streets
Compensated Absences General, Library, and Roads and Streets
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investment Cateqgory |

Investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year-end.

Category 1 - investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by
the City or its agent in the City's name. The following is a summary of the City's investments at
December 31, 2001:

Category Fair Market
1 Value
US Government Securities $ 38,613,364 538,613,364
Investments in state investment board pool 34,418,731
Investments in mutual funds (Kemper) 13,315,930
Securities lending short-term collateral investment pool 2,808,629 \
r

Total Investments $ 89,156,654

The US gavernment securities and the Kemper mutual funds are based on fair market value for these i
investments.

State Investment and Securities Lending Pool

North Dakota Retirement and Investment Office (NDRIO) manages the state investment and securities

tending pools. NDRIO manages the City Employee pension and Police pension and enters into |
security lending fransactions. As part of these transactions, securities are loaned versus collateralized. |
At year-end, the pension plans have no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amount the

plans owe the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe the plans.  The investment includes

cash, U.S. government securities and irrevocable letters of credit. U.S. securities valued at 102% of

the market value of the securities plus any interest and non-U.S. securities collateral valued at 105% of

the market value of the securities plus any accrued interest. Non-cash collateral cannot be pledged or

sold unless the horrower defaults. Cash Is invested in a shori<term Investment pool. The investment

peol is not registered with the SEC and is regulated by the North Dakota Century Code. The fair

market value of the investment pool is the same as the value of the pooled investment shares. A

reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the Combined Balance Sheet is as follows:

Cash on hand 3 44,134
Carrying amount of deposits 51,719,050
Fair Value of Investments 89,156,654

Total $ 140,919,838
Cash and investments $ 137,160,883
Customer deposits 3,758,955

Total $ 140,919,838

Burieigh County Water Users Investment

On January 5, 1998, the City of Bismarck entered into a contract with Burleigh County Water Users, to
furnish the rural citizens with water for the next 40 years. The Burleigh County Water Users deposited
$2,300,000 up front to buy a specific number of gallons each year at a rate of $.397 per billing unit of
100 eubic feet of water. The funds were invested in United States Zero Coupon Treasury Bonds with
an annual maturity date to meet the current water obligation. Each year the City recognizes the value
of these bonds at fair market value. The funds are held as deposits. If the Burleigh County Water
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Users elected to cancel the contract, the deposit would be refunded at the current fair market value.
The value of the deposits in the Water and Sewer Ultility fund at December 31, 2001 was $2,723, 103.

C. Receivables

Receivables at December 31, 2001 consist of the following:

Special Debt Capital Internal TrusYy

Recelvables: General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Service Agency

Taxes - Real Estate & Mobile $ 171523 % 58,321 % 4628 & 26430 § - § 1,642 § 24,935
Accounts Receivabie - Trade 869,579 932,725 - 154,960 564,639 22.671 81,484
Special Assessment - - 193,898 - 25,880 -
Due from Other Funds 108,152 - 5,013,451 - - - 54,852
Notes Receivable - 250,000 - - - - -
Intergovernmental - - 932,520 4,617 - - -
Total Receivables $ 1,149254 § 1,241,046 § 6,149497 & 183,037 $ 590,629 $ 24,213 $ 161,271

D. Fixed Assets

The following is a summary of changes in the general fixed assets account group during the fiscal year:

Balance Balance
General fixed assets: 17172001 Additions Retirements 1213172001
Land $ 1,689,788 % - % - § 1,689,788
Buildings 45,683,901 470,148 - 486,154,050
improvements other than buildings 65,418 - 13,641 51,777
Machinery & Equipment 19,025,470 1,143,780 2,869,249 17,310,001
Totals $66,464,577 $1,613,829 § 2872890 $65205616

The following is a summary of proprietary fund-type fixed assets at December 31, 2001:

Enterprise: 12/31/2001
Land $ 7,765,511
Buildings and system 51,475,065
Improvements other than buildings 122,796,613
Machinery & Equipment 0,692,341
Less: accumulated depreciation (62,479,346)
Totals $ 129,250,184

E. Self-Insurance

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settied claims
resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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General Liability Insurance

The City has established a general liability self-insurance fund. The fund is structured so that only
expenses relating to covered liabilities of the City are charged against it The Fund earns interest and
is subject to periodic funding from property taxation as deemed necessary by the Board of City
Commissioners. The City has purchased a separate airport liability policy that is primary coverage at
the airport. There is a deductible of $1,000 per claim. The seif-insurance fund does not provide
collision or comprehensive automotive coverage for the city.

N.D.C.C. Chapter 32-12.1 provides that for actions in tort, the City has a liability limitation of $250,000
per claim with a $500,000 aggregate limit per event. At December 31, 2001 management estimates
claims incurred but not paid of $259,817. This amount has been recorded as a liability. Setfled claims
have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Medical Insurance

The City has also established a medical self-insurance fund. The purpose of this fund is to pay medical
claims for the City of Bismarck and Parks and Recreation employees and their covered dependents
and to minimize the total cost of annual medical insurance premiums paid by the City of Bismarck
Medical claims exceeding $50,000 per individual per year is covered through Blue Cross and Blue
Shield of North Dakota. The Plan also has aggregate stop loss coverage of $1,946,027 for 2001.
Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

City of Bismarck
Self-lnsurance Funds
Changss in Aggregate Claims Liability
Far the year ended December 31, 2001

Liability Insurance Medical Insurance
2001 2000 2001 2000
Unpaid claims & claim adjustment expenses
at the beginning of the fiscal year § 68,400 §418,807 $ 250,000 $ 250,000

Unpaid claims & claim adjustment expenses:
Provisions for insured events of the current fiscal year 266,852 13,532 1,491,852 1,346,843
Increases (decreases) in provision for insured events

of prior fiscal years (401} (358,041) {133,048) 180,374
Total claims & claim adjustment expenses 334,851 74,298 1,608,804 1,777,217
Payments:

Claims & claim adjustrnent expenses attributable to
insured events of:

Current year (34,731) (145) (1,491,852} (1,346,843)

Prior year (40,303) {5,753) 133,048 (180,374)
Total payments {75,034) (5,898)  (1,358,804) (1,527,217)
Total Unpaid claims & claim adjustment expenses at

the end of the fiscal year $259,817 § 68,400 § 250,000 $ 250,000

State Fire and Tornado and Bonding Fund

The City participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the State Bonding Fund. The
City pays an annual premium for the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover damage to buildings and
contents. Estimating replacement cost in consuitation with the Fire provides replacement cost
coverage and Tornado Fund. The Fire and Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance
carrier for losses in excess of one million dollars per occurrence during a twelve-month period. The
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State Bonding Fund currently provides the City with blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of
$5,000,000 for its employees. The State Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium for this
coverage.

Worker's Compensalion

The City participates in the North Dakota Worker's Compensation Bureau. The Bureau is a state
insurance fund and a "no fauit" insurance system covering the employees and is financed by premiums
assessed to employers for businesses throughout the State. The premiums are avallable for the
payment of claims to employees injured in the course of employment.

F. Long-term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The government issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction
of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and
credit of the government. The legal debt margin as of December 31, 2001 was $55,677,860 with a
remaining non-obligated margin of $55,614,918. City general obligation bonds currently cutstanding
are as follows:

Date of Original Amournt  Amount  Amount Amount

Date of  Final Interest Amount  Outstanding Issued Retired  Outstanding
General obligation bonds lssue  Payment Rate of Issue 1/1/2001  In 2001 in 2001 12/31/2001
Highway construction 1891 57411891 &/1/200% 4.75-620% $ 360,000 $ 50,000 % - % 50,000 $ -
Highway construction 1992 5/1/1992 6/1/2002 4.00-6.25% 1,150,600 295,000 - 140,000 155,000
Highway consfruction 1995  5/1/1985 6/1/2003 4.30-4.87% 380,600 170,000 - 55,000 115,000
Highway construction 1987  5/1/1897 6/1/2002 4 25-4 80% 340,600 150,000 - 75,000 75,000
Total highway construction $ 2,230,000 % 665,000 § - § 320,000 $ 345,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Years General Obligation
2002 285,253
2003 61,463
Subtotal 356,716
Less: amount representing interest (11,716)
Total $345,000

Revenue Bonds

The government has also issued bonds where the government pledges income derived from current
operations to pay debt service. Revenue bonds outstanding at December 31, 2001 are as follows:

Date of Originai Amount Amount Amount Amuount
Date of Final Interest Amount Outstanding  Issued Retired Qutstanding
Revenue Bonds Issue Payment Rate of Issue 17112001 in 2001 in 2001 12/31/2001
Motel, Hquor, restavrant  ens10o8 1212013 3.25-6.40% § 9,400,000 § 8,840,000 § - % 410,600 $ 8,430,000
Sales tax bonds 5(15/1997 101/2002 4.60-4.80% 5,720,000 2,450,000 - 1,185,000 1,265,000
Total Special Revenue Bonds § 15,120,000 § 11,280,000 $% - § 1,595,000 % 9,695,000
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Special Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment

Special assessment bonds were issued annually to meet the cost of construction of street lights,
streets, sewermains, watermains, sidewalks, and public parking lots. The annual installment of
principal and interest is met by special assessments levied against the benefiting property owners. In
the event special assessment taxes are insufficient to meet principal and interest payments on bonds,
the governing body is required to levy a general tax on all taxable property within the city for the
payment of the assumption upon the maturity of the last bond principal installment, pursuant o City
ordinance and N.D.C.C. Special assessment bonds outstanding at December 31, 2001 are as follows:

Date of Orginal Amount Amount Amount Amaunt

Spacial Assessment [ate of Final intarest Amount Outstanding Issued Retired Outstanding

Bonds Issue Payment  Rats of Issue 1/1/2001 in 2001 in 2001 12/31/2001

Series B refunding 6/4/1994 6/1/2009 400-525% § 2,730,000 $ 1,330,000 § - § 1,330,000 % -
Series C refunding 51995  &/12010 4 80-512% 3,945,000 2,745,000 - 300,000 2,445,000
Series D refunding 3/28/1996 51172005 4 00-470% 4,185,060 1,535,000 - 500,000 1,035,000
Series F refunding 7M1996  6/1/2011 4.85-525% 4,630,000 3,460,000 - 350,000 3,070,000
Series G refunding 5M5/1897 6/1/2012 500-520% 4,025,000 3,185,000 - 420,000 2,765,000
Series H refunding 6111998 5M/2013 4 004.70% 3,815,000 3,445,000 - 370,600 3.075.000
Serles | refunding 5/1/1999 6/1/2008 3.50-370% 3,485,000 2,830,000 - 395,000 2,435,000
Series J refunding 5171998  5/1/2014 4004 40% 3,920,000 3,920,000 - 400,000 3,520,000
Series K refunding 5/15/2000 5/1/2015 5.00-560% 3,530,000 3,530,000 - - 3,530,000
Series L refunding 4/30/2001 6/M/2011 4 00-4 50% 6,140,000 - £,140,000 114,000 6,030,000
Series M refunding 5M5/2001 5/1/2016 4 00-510% 5,310,000 - 5,310,000 - 5,310,000
Total refunding series $ 45685000 § 25980,000 $ 11,450,000 § 4215000 § 33,215,000
Sidewalk 91 5411991 6/9/2009 5.10.620% $ 395,000 % 40,000 % - 8 40,000 % -
Sidewalk 92 6/41992 &/1/2002 3.30-570% 270,600 60,000 - 30,000 3G,060
Sldawalk 83 6/1/1993 &/1/2003 3.00-4.00% 750,000 240,000 - 80,000 160,000
Sidewalk 94 6/11994  6/1/2004 3 90-5.10% 660,060 285,000 - 75,000 210,000
Sidewalk 95 7111996 6/1/2006 4 50-5.30% 415,000 270,000 - 45,000 225000
Sidewalk 96 5151997 6/1/2007 4 40-5 20% 590,000 455,000 E 85,000 380,000
Sldewalk 97 6111998  5M/2008 4004 55% 590,000 520,000 - 65,000 485,000
Sidawalk 98 5/111899 4/1/2008 390-4.30% 570,000 570,000 - 60,000 510,000
Sidewalk 99 5/16/2000 5/1/2010 5.20-5.90% 480,000 480,000 - - 480,000
Sidewalk 00 5115/2001 S5M2011 4304 70% 420,000 - . 420,000 - 420,000
Total sidewalk bonds $ 5,140,000 $ 2,920,000 § 420000 $ 460,000 $ 2,880,000
Total special assessment bonds $ 50,835,000 $ 28,900,000 § 11,870,000 § 4675000 % 35,095,000

In the current year, the City issued $6,140,000 of general obligation refunding bonds, Series L that
refunded Series B, C, and F. The transaction resulted in an economic gain of $167,814 and a
reduction of $175,068 in future debt service payments.

Special Assessment Debt Requirement to Maturity

Special assessment bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
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Special

Years Assessment
2002 $ 10,901,758
2003 5,444,172
2004 4,940,954
2005 4,415,811
2006 3,830,957
2007-2011 11,274,841
2012-2016 2,550,280

Subtotal 43,458,774
Less: amouni representing interest {(7,360,774)
Total "% 36,095,000

G. Changes in l.ong-term Liabilities

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the following changes in liabilities occurred in the general
long-term debt account group:

Balance Balance
Cutstanding Cutstanding
1/1/2001 Issued Retired 12/31/2001
General Obligation Bonds $ 665000 % - $ 320,000 § 345,000
Special Revenue Bonds 11,280,000 - 1,595,000 8,695,000
Special Assessments Bonds 28,900,000 11,870,000 4,675,000 36,085,000
Deferred Sick Leave 277,821 - 92,607 185,214
Compensaled Absences 1,275,192 1,057,813 1,040,841 1,202,164
Total $42,408,013 $12,927,813 § 7,723,448 $47,612,378

H. Capitai Lease

The City has entered into a lease agreement to finance the acquisition of a truck for its Solid

Waste Utility. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore,
it has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the inception in
the Sclid Waste Utility enterprise fund.

The asset acquired through this capital lease is as follows:

Machinery and equipment $ 147,059
Less: Accumulated depreciation (11,029

Total $ 136,030

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as
of December 31, 2001 were as follows:
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Year ending December 31

2002 § 34,781
2003 34,781
2004 34,781
2005 34,781
2006 5,797
Total minimum lease payments $144,921
Less: amount representing interest (19,662)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 125,259

I. Industrial Revenue Bonds

From time to time, the City has approved issuance of Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial
assistance fo private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial
facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the financed property and are
payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Ownership of the acquired
facilities will transfer to the private-sector entity upon repayment of the bonds. Neither the City, the
state, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabiiities in the accompanying financial statements. As of
December 31, 2001, there were 5 series of Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding; the aggregate
principal amount payable is unknown. Neither the State of North Dakota nor the City of Bismarck has a
central repository. The only requirement for this type of issue is to request the amount needed for City
approval. Most of the time this amount is in excess of the actual amount issued, When completely paid

or called, they must notify the City of this event.

J. Interfund Assets/Liabilities

Details pertaining to interfund receivables {due from) and pavables {due to) are as follows:

Recelvable fund (dus from) Pavable fund (due to} Amount

Watermains Debt Service Watermains Capital Projects $ 281,186
Sidewalks Debt Service Sidewalks Capital Projects 193,986
Street Improvements Debt Service Street Improvements Capital Projects 3,779,504
Watermains Debt Service Water and Sewer Uitility Enterprise Fund 758,774
General Fund Library Special Revenue Fund 18,864
General Fund Community Development 4,017
General Fund Miscellaneous Government Grants 85,271
Deferred Sick Leave Trust & Agency Fund Airport Enterprise Fund 7,815
Deferred Sick Leave Trust & Agency Fund Salid Waste Enterprise Fund 15,207
Deferred Sick Leave Trust & Agency Fund Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund 30,446
Deferred Sick Leave Trust & Agency Fund Airport Flightline Enterprise Fund 1,385
Total Receivables/Payables 55,176,455
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K. Contributed Capital

Changes in contributed capital for the year 2001 are as follows:

Enterprise
Solid Water and Parking
Airport Waste Sewer Authority
Sources Airport Flightline Utility Utility Lots Total
Beginning balance $ 24117758 § 272,762 § 1,165860 $ 59,558,956 § 10,047,648 § 95,162,784
Contributing sources:
General fixed assets - - - 29,012 - 29,012
Capltaf Project Funds - - - 264,628 - 264,628
Depreciation on assets
acquired with capital grants
prior to January 1, 2000 {876,554} - - {399,524) - (1,276,078)
Ending balance $ 23241204 § 272,762 & 1,165680 § 59453072 $ 10,047,648 $ 94,180,348

IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Segment information - Enterprise Funds

The government maintains five enterprise funds that are intended to be self-supporting through user
fees charged for service to the public. These enierprise funds provide airport services, flightline
services, waste disposal and collection, water and sewer, and public parking. Financial segment
information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001 is presented below:

Enterprise
Solid Water and Parking
Airport Waste Sewer Authorlty
Airport Flightline Utility Utility Lots Total
Operating Revenues $ 2,203,195 § 754406 B 3,708,190 § 11,918,706 & 781,162 % 19,455,669
Depreciation Expense 1,395,308 7,617 461,299 2,482,643 235,700 4,582,567
Operating Income {Loss) {762,335) 19,566 662,681 4,360,994 7224 4,288,130
Net Income (Loss) 805,886 21,880 1,056,394 5,440,381 {187,151} 7,237,500
Operating Transfers In - - - 42,163 5,976 48,139
Cperating Transfers Out 42 426 11,278 486,841 413,445 214,588 728,678
Current Capital

Contributions - - - 203,640 - 293,640
Fixed Asset Additions 1,792,103 - 548,385 0,468,945 - 11,909,433
Fixed Asset Deletions 349,424 12,476 213,023 993,643 - 1,568,566
Net Working Capital 1,892,485 368,145 2,789,850 8,625,340 460,543 14,136,333
Total Assets 38,530,586 578,274 16,082,032 103,425,843 7,320,936 165,947,671
Total Equity 38,239,984 547,301 15,380,098 "98,102,057 7,320,936 159,599,376

B: Closure and Post Closure Care Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its Bismarck Municipal
Solid Waste Facility when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for thirty vears after closure. Although closure and post closure care costs will be
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paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City reports a portion of
these closure and post closure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill
capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $394,206 reported as landfill closure and post
closure care liability at December 31, 2001, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based
on the use of 29 percent of the estimated capacity of the landfili. The City will recognize the remaining
estimated cost of closure and pos! closure care of $981,511 as the remaining estimated capacity is
filled These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post closure care in
2001. The City expects to ciose the existing landfill cell in 2018. Actual costs may be higher due to
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulation.

The City is required by state and federal laws and regulations to determine the method they would
choose to finance the closure and post closure costs. We are required to run an annual financial test
as specified in the N.D.C.C. 33-20-14-07 to insure compliance. The City expects that future inflation
costs will be paid from operating revenue. However, if the funds are inadequate or additional post
closure requirements are determined (due to changes in technology or applicable laws or reguiations),
these costs may need to be covered by the sale of general obligation bonds and from future tax
revenue.

C. Cost Sharing Arrangement

Combined Communications Center

The City of Bismarck owns and operates a Combined Communications Center. The Center is
managed by a board, which is comprised of six members. It includes three members fram the City (a
commissioner, the Chief of Police, and the Chief of Fire and Inspections), two members for the County
(a commissioner and the County Sheriff), and one representative from a local ambulance service that is
appointed by a majority of the members of the board. Initially, the City provided 65% and the County
provided 35% of the funding for the Center. The City and County approve the annual budget for the
Center. The percentages for 2001 remasin the same as the initial percentage of 35% for the County
and 65% for the City. The employeas of the Center are the employees of the City. The Combined
Communications Center is a part of the General Fund.

Assets: Total

Praperty and equipment $867,337
Less value of depreciation (582,022)
Net assets $285,315
Total opertaing expenditures - 2001 $693,374

There is no debt cutstanding for the Combined Communications Center. The {otal value of the assels
is carried in the Clty's General Fixed Asset Account Group. No depreciation is recorded in the financial
statements.

D. Employee Retirement Systems

The City of Bismarck contributes to three separate pension plans that cover substantially all full -time
employees. They include the City of Bismarck Employees Pension ("City"), the Bismarck Police
Pension ("Police”) and the Bismarck Firefighter's Relief Association ("Fire"). All of these plans are
defined benefit pension system. The Firefighter's Relief Association is a separate legal entity and is not
administered by the City. This plan has not been included in the reporting entity and therefore is not
shown in the accompanying financial statements. The City and Police plans are included in the City's
financial reports as Pension Trust Funds.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting - The City's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the
contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of each pian.

Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reported at fair market value.

Actuarial information is not available for the year ending December 31, 2001.

City of Bismarck Employees Pension

Plan Description - The City plan is a cost sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system.
Membership in the plan on December 31, 2000 is as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 101
Terminated employees - vested 14
Active employees:
Vested 183
Non-vested 124
Number of participating employers: 2

Employees may be eligible for early, normal or disability retirement, as well as death benefits. Normal
retirement age for full benefits is age 62. Employees who retire at or after age 62 with 10 years of
credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthty for life, in an amount
equal to one and three-guarters percent of the average of the member's highest 60 months base salary
for each fuli and fractional year of contributing service. Employees with 10 years of credited service
may retire at an earlier age and receive a reduced retirement benefit.

If an employee leaves employment or dies, the employee's contributions, plus earnings at two and one-
half percent, or the actual amount earned, whichever is greater are refunded to the employee or their
beneficiary.

Benefit provisions are established under the authority of the City Commission.

Contributions - Participating employees confribute to the plan at a rate of 5% of salary and the
employers contribute at a rate defermined by local statute. The contribution rates are established by
local ordinance, and the emplioyer contribution rate set by the City Commission.

Contributions:

Tear _ Amount_
2001 $375,227
2000 830,187
1999 839,520

The annual pension cost equals the employer contributions for the years ending December 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999. The percentage funded was 100% for each year. NPO for the end of each year was
zero,

Reserves - The fund balance at December 31, 2001 is $22,650,248 and the entire amount is reserved
for employee pension benefils.
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City of Bismarck Police Pensicn Plan

Plan Description - The Police plan is a single employer public employee retirement system.

Membership in the plan on December 31, 2000 is as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 30
Terminated employees - vestad 3
Active employees:
Vested 57
Non-vested 53
Number of participating employers: 1

The plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after 10
years of credited service. Employees who retire at or after age 55 with 10 years of credited service are
entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthiy for life, in an amount equal to two percent of
their final average salary, for each full and fractional year of contributing service. Final average salary
is the employees’ average salary, excluding overtime and longevity pay, over the last 36-month p eriod
of credited service. Employees with 10 years of credited service may retire at an earlier age and
receive a reduced retirement benefit.

Any employee who leaves shall be entitled to a refund of all contributions made by them, with
accumuiated interest thereon, at the rate of two and one-half percent per annum or the actual amount
earned, whichever is greater. A member who refires as a result of length of service or as a resuit of
disability shall be eligible for pension. The surviving spouse, as lon g as unmarried, shall receive a sum
equal to two-thirds of the amount the employee would have received. Children are covered until 18
years of age.

Benefit provision is established under the authority of the City Commission.

Contributions - Pariicipating employees contribute to the plan at a rate of 6% of salary and the
employers contribute at a rate determined by local statute. The contribution rates are established by
local ordinance and the employer contribution rate set by the City Commission.

Contributions:

Year Amount

2001 $109,231
2000 424 103
1699 413,899

The annual pension cost equals the employer contributions for the years ending December 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999. The percentage funded was 100% for each year. NPO for the end of each year was
Zero,

Reserves - The fund balance at December 31, 2001 is $11,328,553 and the entire amount is reserved
for employee pension benefits,

Bismarck Firefighter's Relief Association Plan

Plan Description - The Fire plan is a single employer public employee retirement system governed by
Section 18-11 of the North Dakota State Century Code. The Association is organized, operated, and
maintained in accordance with its own articles of incorporation and by-laws. All full-time firefighters are
eligible members, however participation is voluntary.

Membership in the plan on December 31, 2001 is not available at this time.
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Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits -
Terminated employees - vested -
Active employees:
Vested -
Non-vested -

Employees who retire at or after age 50, with at least 10 years of credited service, are eligible to a
retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 20 to 60 percent of a first class firefighter's salary.
The plan also provides for death and disability benefits.

Benefit provisions and changes to benefit formulas are established under the authority of the plans
Board of Directors.

Contributions - Participaling employees contribute to the plan at a rate of 7% of salary, as set annually
by the Board of Directors. |n addition, 50% of the amount received from the State for the assessed
revenue from the 1.125% of the premiums assessed to insurance companies for fire and multi-perial
insurance on property within the City is contributed to the plan.

Contributions:
Year __Amount_
2001 $396,077
2000 315,925
1999 296,362

The annual pension cost equals the employer contributions for the years ending December 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999. The percentage funded was 100% for each year. NPO for the end of each year was
Zero.

Complete financial and pension information on the Bismarck Firefighter's Relief Association can be
obtained by contacting:
Firefighter's Relief Association
PO Box 5503
Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5503.

Schedule of Funding Progress

City of Bismarck Employees Pension (In Thousand of Dollars)

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Acturarial UAAL asa
Valuation Actuarial Accrued  Accrued Annual Percentage

Date Value of Liability  Liability Funded Covered of Annual
Jan1 PlanAssets (AAL) (UAAL)  Ratio Payrolf Covered Payroll

1996 § 18,995 $16,254 § (2,741) 116.9% $8,462 (32.4) %
1997 21,504 17,688 (3,816) 12186% 8,759 {(43.6) %
1908 24,849 10,148 (6,701} 129.8% 8,801 (64.0) %
1909 27,868 20,190 (7.678) 138.0% 9,110 (84.3) %
2000 30,829 21,632 (9,297) 143.0% 9,685 (96.0) %
2001 31,609 23,299 (8,310) 135.7% 10,508 (79.1) %
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City of Bismarck Police Pension (in Thousand of Dollars)

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial  Acturarial UAAL as a
Valuation  Actuarial  Accrued  Accrued Annual Percentage

Date Value of Liability  Liability Funded Covered of Annual
Jan1 Plan Assels (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

1996 § 8674 $ 7,165 $ (1,509) 121.1% $2,903 (52.0) %
1997 9,921 7933  (1988) 1251% 3,055 (65.1) %
1998 11,555 8,713  (2,842) 1326% 3,139 (90.5) %
1999 13,057 9,536  (3,521) 136.9% 3,234 (108.9) %
2000 14,742 10,402  (4,340) 141.7% 3,396 (127 8) %
2001 15,126 11,581  (3,545) 1306% 3,723 (95.2) %

City of Bismarck Firefighter's Relief Association (In Thousand of Dollars)

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial  Acturarial UAAL as a
Valuation  Actuarial  Accrued  Accrued Annual Percentage

Date Value of Liability  Liability Funded Covered of Annual
Jan1 Plan Assets  (AAL) {(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

1994  § 7,966 § 9,836 1,870 81.0% $1,770 1056 %
1996 9,877 10,9589 1,082 90.1% 2,120 510 %
1908 12,707 11,880 (827) 107.0% 2,265 (36.5) %

Bi-annual actuarial valuations are done on the Firefighter's Relief Association.

City Plan Police Plan Fire Plan
Valuation date 1/1/2001 1112001 1/1/1908
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age
Normal Normal Normal
Amortization methed Level % of Level % of Level % of
payroll over payroll over payrall over
remaining remaining remaining
amortization  amortization  amortization

period-closed period-closed period-closed
Remaining amortization period 16 yrs 13 yrs 27 yrs

Valuation Method - Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Projected salary increases 4.00% 4.00% 4 50%
Assumed payment increases 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Post retirement cost of living adjustments None None 2.25%
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The above information on the Firefighter's Relief Association is the latest information available as of the
date of this report.

E. Issued But Non-Effective Pronouncements

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several statements not yet
implemented by the City. The statements that will impact the City are as follows:

No. 34 "Baslic Financial Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments;” No. 37 "Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-For
State and Local Governments: Omnibus;” and No. 38, “Certain Financial Statements Note Disclosures”
will be effective for the City based on its revenues, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.
These statements, summarized below, impose new standards for financlal reporting. Management has
not yet completed their assessment of these statements, however, it will have a material effect on the
overall financial statement presentation for the City.

For the first time, financial managers will be required to share their insights in a management's
discussion and analysis (MD&A) that gives readers an analysis of the government's overall financial
position and results of the previous year's operations.

Financial statements wili be presented under a dual perspective — a governmeni-wide perspective
{new) and a fund level perspective. For the first time, the annual report will include government wide
financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the government's activities, not just
those that cover costs by charging a fee for services, as was previously required. Governments will
report all capital assets, including Infrastructure, in a government-wide statement of net assets and will
report depreciation expense, the cost of using up capital assets, in the statement of activities.
Infrastructure assets will be reported; but may not be required to be depreciated under certain
circumstances. The net assets of a government will be broken down info three categories: invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. A statement of activities will be
presented in at least the same level of detail provided in governmental fund statements; generally,
expenses and program revenues by function. Program expenses will include all direct expenses:
governments that allocate overhead and other indirect expenses to individual programs will show the
allocation in a separate column. Special and extraordinary items will be reported separately from other
revenues and expenses. This way, users will see if the government's conventional, recurring revenues
and expenses balanced.

Statement No. 34 requires governments to continue to present fund level financial statemenis with
information about funds. The focus of these fund-based statements has been sharpened, however, by
requiring governments to report information about their most important or major funds (those whose
revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets, or liabilities are at least 10 percent of the total for their fund
category or type (governmental or enterprise) and at least 5 percent of the aggregate amount for all
govermnmental and enterprise funds), including a government's general fund. Fund-based statements
for governmental activities (generally, those supported by tax revenues) will continue to report the flow
of current financial resources {(generally, cash and other assets that can easily be converted to cash.)

To help users understand and assess the relationship between fund-based and government-wide
financial statements, governments will present a summary reconciliation that will show the interplay
between the fwo types of statements.

The City wili continue to provide budgetary comparison information in their annuai reports as required

supplementary information. An important change, however, is a requirement to add the government's
original budget to the current comparison of final budget and actual results.
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F. Commitments

Preliminary building designs were initiated for a new terminal building at the Municipal Airport. The
designs also included a new entrancefexit roadway and parking lot system. The City Commission has
set the total funding for the project at $24.2 million. The Federal Aviation Administration will provide
approximately 70% of the construction funding with the balance from Airport revenues and $1 million
from the City Motel/Liquor/Restaurant tax. Federal funding in the amount of $1.5 million has already
been provided for the design of the new terminal. Final authorization of the design is scheduled for the
spring of 2002.
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COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

ASSETS

Cash and Investments

Receivables (Net of Allowances for Uncollectibles):

Taxes:
Property
Accounts
Due from Other Funds:
Library
City Transit
Community Development
Miscellaneous Government Grants
Intergovernmental
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue:
Property Taxes
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Unreserved, undesignated
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
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2001 2000
$ 13,596,173 $ 11,745,898
171,523 180,319
869,579 510,710
18,864 31,853
- 4,495
4,017 8,058
85,271 77,277
- 50,896
$ 14,745,427 $ 12,609,506
$ 134,875 $ 151,225
119,451 146,941
254,326 298,166
14,491,101 12,311,340
14,491,101 12,311,340
$ 14,745,427 $ 12,609,506




CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKQTA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 7,480,614 7,075,370 5,799,872
2% Mote! Hotel 380,000 412,550 396,792
Licenses and Permits 993,275 976,512 802,208
Intergovernmental 3,421,082 3,586,421 2,848,202
Charges for Services 2,837,875 3,031,769 3,267,079
Fines and Forfeits 883,000 899,382 852,100
investment Income 713,204 792,180 857,102
Rentals 237,139 123,613 163,748
Miscellaneous 10,500 14,949 14,770
TOTAL REVENUES 16,956,699 16,912,746 15,001,874
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Building Construction 21,300 21,257 130,153
Technical Eguipment - - 530
GIS Systemn 8,308 8,245 7,248
Munieipal Court 215,419 208,172 190,983
Assessing 320,645 376,110 345,088
Administration and Commission 356,827 318,358 B57,714
Fiscal and Information Services 1,002,355 BE66,567 646,016
Attarney 197,485 195,368 168,843
Human Resources 193,443 190,173 130,486
Commeoen Software 243,000 - 20,000
Employea Training 30,000 11,575 11,308
Equipment Reserve 30,639 30,365 28,623
Government Aid Programs 773,500 686,413 485,343
Special Projects 89,000 75,369 -
Salary and Benefit Adjustments 78,737 1,873 -
Contingencies 586,000 - -
City/County Office Building 173,514 173,310 152,270
Cne-Time Budgets 185,708 185,512 -
Planning 302,697 268,164 198,675
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 4,878,577 3,624,831 3,373,289
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Palice 5,347,859 5,237,334 4,615,785
Fire and Inspections 3,831,842 3,673,663 3,482,979
Combined Communication Center 804 157 693,134 666,732
Fire Truck and Equipment 95,000 5,367 -
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 10,078,858 9,609,498 8,765,496
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
HIGHWAY AND STREETS:
Engineering 1,056,090 964,284 908,012
Weed Control 24,485 24,378 15,145
Leafy Spurge 24,485 24485 16,927
Forestry 388,134 349,102 321,410
Forestry-Boulevard Trees 101,859 70,710 95,467
TOTAL HIGHWAY AND STREETS 1,595,053 1,432,859 1,356,961
HEALTH:
N Heailth Tracks 87,259 65,260 63,039
Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health 800,793 792,635 727,453
TOTAL HEALTH B88,052 857,895 790,492
CULTURE AND RECREATION:
Civic Center/City Auditorium 1,432,234 1,424,263 1,492,357
Civic Center Prornotions 422 500 417,684 372,557
Cable TV Promotions 182,000 182,000 182,000
Ceniennial Beach 50,200 212 561
TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION 2,086,934 2,024,169 2,047,509
CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,472,523 575,421 856,823
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 22,899,997 18,124,773 17,190,570
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (6,043,208) {1,212,027) (2,188,696)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In;
Special Revenue 2,973,368 3,008,357 2,775,448
Capital Projects 10,542 66,701 15,532
Enterprise 228,997 228,997 111,091
Internal Service 43,573 53,483 21,158
Trust and Agency 38,689 129,610 9,313
Operating Transfers Out:
Special Revenue (51,072) {42,744) (173,834)
Enterprise - {42,183) {775}
Internal Service (3,265) (7,299) -
Trust and Agency {(300) {3,154} -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) 3,240,532 3,391,788 2,757,933
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES 3 (2,802,766) 2,178,761 569,237
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 12,311,340 11,742,103
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 14,491,101 $ 12,311,340
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ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Receivables (Net of Allowances
For Uncollectibles):
Taxes
Accounts
Notes Receivable
Customer Deposits - Restricted

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable

Due to other funds

Deferred Revenue:
Property Taxes
Grants

Customer Deposits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for Long-Term Receivable
Unreserved, Undesignated
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2001
{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2000)

Special Motei/Liquor
Beficiency/ Social Sales Tax Restaurant
Assumption Security Fund Tax
$ 1,297,350 $ 08,204 $ 8,610,482 $ 1,056,149

9,581 18,634 - -

- - 568,270 85,672

- - 250,000 -

$ 1,306,931 5 116,838 $ 9428,752 $ 1,141,821
B 2,354 3 142 3 - $ -
7,311 13,220 - -
9,665 13,362 - -

- - 250,000 -

1,287,266 103,478 9,178,752 1,141,821

1,297,266 103,476 9,428,752 1,141,821
$ 1,306,931 $ 116,838 3 9,428,752 $ 1.141.821
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Police Roads
E/H Transit Department Youth and Totals
System Special Funds Activities Streets Library 2001 2000

3 657 $ 380,648 $ - $ 2,078,510 § 212,853 $ 13,744,853 $ 11,301,130
4,949 - - - 25,157 58,321 72,542
- - - 261,792 16,991 932,725 930,556
- - - - - 250,000 -
- - - - - - 20,000
3 5,606 $ 390,648 $ - $ 2,340,302 3 255,001 $ 14,985,899 $ 12,324,228
3 - % 369 3 - 3 10,900 3 10,968 L 24,763 5 71,817
- - - - 18,864 18,864 36,348
3,473 - - - 17,693 41,697 58,549
- - - - - - 218,489
- - - - - - 20,000
3,473 369 - 10,800 47,555 85,324 406,203
- - - - - 250,600 -
2,133 380,279 - 2,329,402 207,446 14,650,575 11,819,025
2,133 390,279 - 2,328,402 207,448 14,900,575 11,918,025
3 5,606 $ 380,648 5 - $ 2,340,302 $ 255001 $ 14,985,899 $ 12,324,228

37



CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

Special Motel/Liquor
Deficiency/ Social Sales Tax Restaurant
Assumption Security Fund Tax
REVENUES
Taxes 3 244,328 $ 699,872 5 7,837,357 $ 1127264
Licenses and Permits - - - -
Intergovernmental 6,467 21,128 165,534 -
Charges for Services - - - -
Fines and Forfeits - - - -
investment income 220,551 20,168 394,532 68,317
Rentals - - - 19,200
Miscellaneous - 489 - -
TOTAL REVENUES 471,348 741,657 8,397 423 1,214,781
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 51,982 923,525 277,506 -
Public Safety - - - -
Highways and Streets - - - -
Culture and Recreation - - - -
Capital Outlay - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 51,982 923,525 277,806 -
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 418,364 {181,868) 8,119,917 1,214,781
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating Transfers In:
General Fund - 33,780 - -
Special Revenue - 1,698 - -
Debt Service 283,831 - - -
Capital Projects - 8,869 - -
Enterprise - - - -
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund {64,517) - (2,847,028) (37,266)
Special Revenue - - (207,857} -
Debt Service (361,671) - (1,301,415} {808,070}
Capital Projects (112,087) - {1,500,000) {460,000}
Internal Service - - - -
Trust and Agency - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES {244,444} 44,347 {5,856,300) {1,305,336)
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES 174,920 (137,521) 2,263,617 {90,555)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 1,122,346 240,997 7,165,135 1,232,376
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 1,207,266 3 103,476 $ 9,428,752 $ 1,141,821

38




Exhibit B-2

Palice
E/H Transit Depariment Youth Roads and Totals
System Special Funds Activities Streets Library 2001 2000
$ 190,894 5 - $ - 5 - 963,174 $ 11,062,689 $ 10,773,960
- 14,827 - - - 14,827 3,805
748,600 380,774 - 2,208,189 245,576 3,777,268 3,279,415
- - - 1,194,889 18,762 1,214,661 1,095,646
- 5,882 - - 51,965 58,847 62,056
1,122 20,276 - 98,112 24,234 847,312 632,025
- - - 260,413 24 279,637 175,313
- - - 11,575 14,600 26,664 28,185
941,616 422,759 - 3,773,188 1,319,335 17,282,105 16,050,405
936,049 - - - - 2,188,062 1,979,884
- 149,631 - - - 149,631 492 496
- - - 3,056,757 - 3,058,757 2,789,292
- - - - 1,186,668 1,186,668 1,135,567
- 53,791 - 456,815 - 510,606 1,157,660
936,049 203,422 - 3,513,572 1,186,668 7,002,724 7,554,899
5,567 219,337 - 259,616 132,667 10,189,381 8,495,506
- 8,964 - - - 42,744 173,834
- - - 207,857 - 209,555 221,669
- - - - - 293,831 474,471
- - - - - 8,869 151,644
- - - - - - 121,729
- {4,199) - (40,547) {14,800) {3,008,357) {2,775,448)
- {1,6098) - - - {209,555) {221,669)
- - - - - (2,471,156) {2,505,880)
- - - - - {2,072,087) (1,514,348}
- (113) - - - {113) {20,000)
- {1,562) - - - {1,562) -
- 1,392 - 167,310 (14,800) (7,207,831} (5,893,998)
5,567 220,729 - 426,926 117,867 2,981,550 2,601,508
{3,434} 169,550 - 1,902,476 89,579 11,918,025 9,317,517
$ 2,133 $ 390,279 $ - $ 2,329,402 207,446 $ 14,800,575 $ 11,919,025
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
SPECIAL DEFICIENCY/ASSUMPTION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Taxes $ 255,068 $ 244,328 £ 416,293
Intergovernmental 3,798 6,467 6,825
Charges for Services - - 141,441
Investment Income 60,000 220,551 126,715
Rentals - - -
Miscellaneous - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 318,866 471,346 691,274
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 52,072 51,982 120,587
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 52,072 51,982 120,587
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 266,794 419 364 570,687
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES {USES)
Operating Transfers In:
Debt Service - 293,831 474471
Capital Projects - - 10,078
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund (64,517) (64,517) (6,209)
Debt Service {473,758) (361,671) (375,345}
Capital Prajects - (112,087) -
Internal Service - - (20,000)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LUSES) (538,275) (244,444) 82,995
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES $ (271.481) 174,920 653,682
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 1,122,346 468,664
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 1,297,266 $ 1,122,346
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmenial
Charges for Services
Investment income
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCGES
Operating Transfers in:
General Fund
Special Revenue
Capital Projects
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES UNDER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING
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2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
$ 740,059 $ 699,872 $ 674,689
1,117 21,128 13,949
7,000 20,168 26,949
- 489 -
758,176 741,657 715,587
928,950 023,625 839,969
928,950 923,625 839,969
{(170,774) (181,868) {124,382)
- 33,780 -
- 1,688 -
- 8,869 -
- 44 347 -
$ (170,774) {137,521} (124,382)
240,997 365,379
5 103,476 $ 240,897




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH BAKOTA
SALES TAX FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Operating Transfers Out;
General Fund
Special Revenue
Debt Service
Capital Projects

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES $

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
$ 7,852,320 $ 7,837,357 7,500,496
- 165,534 204,824
265,000 384,532 283,381
7,917,320 8,397,423 7,988,701
1,500,000 277,506 403,062
1,500,000 277,508 403,062
6,417,320 8,119,917 7,585,639
{2,847,028) (2,847,028) (2,727,432)
(344,272) (207,857} {221,669)
- (1,301,415) (1,303,625)
(2,801,415) {1,500,000) {1,500,000)
(5,992,715} (5,856,300) {5,752,726)
424 6085 2,263,617 1,832,313
7,165,135 5,332,222
$ 8428752 $ 7,165,135
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
MOTEL., LIQUOR, RESTAURANT TAX FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2000)

REVENUES
Taxes
Investment Income

Renials
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:

Capital Projects
Operating Transfers Out:

General Fund

Debt Service

Capital Projects

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING

Exhibit B-3

SOURCES OVER {UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND

OTHER FINANGING USES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING
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2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
$ 1,075,000 $ 1,127,264 $ 1,075,264
77,000 68,317 52,248
- 19,200 6,400
1,152,000 1,214,781 1,133,913
- - 182,372
- - 182,372
1,152,000 1,214,781 951,541
- - 141,566
(6,476) (37,266) {5,311)
(B38,860) {808,070} (826,910)
(460,000) {460,000} {14,348)
{1,305,338) {1,305,338) (705,003)
5 (153,338) {80,555) 246,538
1,232,376 985,838
5 1,141,821 $ 1,232,376




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
E/H TRANSIT SYSTEM FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
{(WiTH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Taxes $ 200,643 3 190,894 % 182,654
Intergovernmental 777,211 749,600 610,577
Investment Income - 1,122 824
TOTAL REVENUES 977,854 941,616 794,055
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1,234,400 936,049 433,894
Capital Outlay - - 365,320
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,234,400 936,049 799,214
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $  (256,546) 5,567 {5,159)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING (3,434) 1,725
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 2,133 % (3,434}
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH bAKOTA
POLICE DEPARTMENT SPECIAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

Exhibit B-3
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2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Licenses and Permits $ 4,000 14,827 3 3,805
Intergovernmental 110,000 380,774 31,632
Fines and Forfeils - 6,882 5,500
Investment income 9,900 20,276 20,066
Miscellaneous 9,000 . - 2,805
TOTAL REVENUES 132,900 422,759 63,808
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety 191,581 149,631 147,930
Capital Qutlay 77,510 53,791 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 268,091 203,422 147,930
REVENUES QVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {136,191) 219,337 (84,122)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:
General Fund - 8,864 -
Operating Transfers Out;
General Fund - (4,199) -
Special Revenue - (1,698) -
Internal Service - {113) .
Trust and Agency - (1,562) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (lJSES) - 1,392 -
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES $ (136,181) 220,729 (84,122)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 169,550 253,672
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 390,279 $ 169,550




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
YOUTH ACTIVITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

2001 2000
Budget Actuat Actual
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - § - 5 125,187
Charges for Services - - 12,695
Investment Income - - 58
Miscellaneous - - _ 4,005
TOTAL REVENUES - - 141,945
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Public Safety - - 344 568
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - - 344,566
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES ' - - {202,621)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers In:
General Fund - - 173,834
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES - - 173,834
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES UNDER EXPENDITURES $ - - (28,787}
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING - 28,787
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ - 3 -
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKQTA

ROADS AND STREETS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Exhibit B-3

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

REVENUES
Intergoverrmental
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Rentals
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Highway and Sireets
Capital Qutlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:
Special Revenue
Enterprise
Operating Transfers Qut:
General Fund
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANGING
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING
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2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
1,875,650 $ 2,208,189 $ 2,012,289
907,620 1,194,899 921,819
75,000 98,112 101,628
350,036 260,413 168,901
86,500 11,575 20,708
3,394,808 3,773,188 3,225,345
3,447,356 3,056,757 2,789,292
494 777 456,815 606,627
3,942,133 3,513,572 3,395,919
{547,327) 259,616 (170,574)
344,272 207,857 221,669
111,710 - 121,729
{40,547) (40,547) {24,546)
415,435 167,310 318,852
{131,892) 426,926 148,278
1,902,476 1,754,198

$ 2,329,402 $ 1,902,476




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
LIBRARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

2001 2000
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES .
Taxes $ 1,016,183 $ 963,174 3 924 564
Intergovernmental 217,070 245,576 274,132
Charges for Services 33,000 19,762 19,681
Fines and Forfeits 53,000 51,965 56,556
Investment income 11,000 24,234 20,1585
Rentals 1,000 24 12
Miscellaneous 1,000 14,600 667
TOTAL REVENUES 1,332,253 1,319,335 1,285,777
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Cuiture and Recreation 1,265,095 1,186,668 1,135,567
Capital Outlay - - 185,713
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,265,085 1,186,668 1,321,280
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 67,158 132,667 (25,503)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund {12,600) {14,800) {11,950)
Trust and Agency - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES {12,600) {14,800) {11,950}
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING
USES $ 54,558 117,867 (37,453)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 88,579 127,032
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 5 207,446 $ 89,579
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
TOTALS FOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

REVENUES
Taxes

Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Investiment Income
Rentals

Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Streets
Culture and Recreation
Capital Qutlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Exhibit B-3

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating Transfers In:
General Fund
Special Revenue
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Enterprise

Operating Transfers Out;
General Fund
Special Revenue
Debt Service
Capital Projects
internal Service
Trust and Agency

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND QTHER

FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING

2001 2000

Budget Actual Actual
$ 10,839,273 $ 11,062,889 % 10,773,980
4,000 14,827 3,805
3,094,846 3,777,268 3,279,415
840,620 1,214,661 1,095,646
53,000 58,847 62,056
504,900 847,312 632,025
351,036 279,637 175,313
896,500 26,664 28,185
15,984,175 17,282,105 16,050,405
3,715,422 2,189,062 1,979,884
191,581 149,631 492,496
3,447,356 3,056,757 2,789,292
1,265,095 1,186,668 1,135;567
572,287 510,606 1,157,660
9,191,741 7,092,724 7,554,899
6,792,434 10,189,381 8,495,506
- 42,744 173,834
344,272 209,555 221,669
- 293,831 474,471
- 8,869 151,644
111,710 - 121,729
{2,971,168) {(3,008,357) (2,775,448)
{344,272) {209,555) (221,669)
{1,312,618) {2,471,156) (2,505,880)
(3,261,415 {2,072,087) (1,514,348)
- (113) {20,000)
- (1,562) -
SQURCES (USES) {7,433,491) (7,207,831) (5,883,998)
$ (641,057) 2,981,550 2,601,508
11,919,025 9,317,517
$ 14,800,575 3 11,919,025
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2001

{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2000)

ASSETS

Cash and Investments

Cash with Escrow Agent

Taxes Receivahle

Special Assessments Receivable
Due from Other Funds

Due from Other Governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue:
Property Taxes
Water and Sewer Utility
Park District
Special Assessments
TOTAL DEFERRED REVENUE
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for Refunding Bonds
Unreserved, Undesignated
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Sales Tax Highway Motel, Liquor,
Revenue Construction Restaurant
Bonds Bond Fund Bonds
$ 463,680 $ 282,058 $ 935,890

- 9,628 -

$ 463,680 $ 291,686 $ 035,880
$ - % - § -
- 6,808 -

- 6,806 -

- 6,806 -

463,680 284,880 935,890
463,680 284,880 935,890

$ 463,680 $ 201,686 $ 935,890

50




Exhibit C-1

Street Parking Totals

Sewermains  Walermains Sidewalks  Improvements Lots 2001 2000
$ 397,341 3 50,990 $ 831,400 $ 3,990,315 $ 41,828 $ 6,993,502 $ 6,554,397
- - - 4,794,154 - 4,794,154 -
- - - - - 9,628 12,106
69,864 6,140 9,398 108,496 - 193,898 300,103
- 1,039,961 193,986 3,779,504 - 5,013,451 4,496,062
92,672 33,273 32,697 257,533 516,345 932,520 1,156,186
$ 559,877 § 1,130,364  $1,067 481 $12,930,002 $ 558,173 $ 17,937,153 $ 12,518,854
3 - $ - 3 - $ 56,374 5 - $ 56,374 $ -
- - - - - - 2,135
- - - - - 6,806 9,819
- 758,774 - - - 758,774 838,065
92,672 33,273 32,697 257,533 516,345 932,520 1,156,186
67,905 5,386 5,787 96,461 - 175,539 240,351
160,577 797,433 38,484 353,994 516,345 1,873,639 2,244 421
160,577 797,433 38,484 410,368 516,345 1,830,013 2,246 556
- - - 4,794,154 - 4,794,154 -
389,300 332,931 1,028,997 7,725,480 41,828 11,212,986 10,272,298
399,300 332,931 1,028,997 12,519,634 41,828 16,007,140 10,272,298
$ 559,877 § 1,130,364  $1,067,481 $12,930,002 $ 558,173 $ 17,937,153 $ 12,518,854
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000}

Sales Tax Highway Motel, Liquor
Revenue Construction Restaurant
Bonds Bond Fund Bonds
REVENUES
Taxes $ - 3 347,262 $ -
Special Assessments - - -
intergovernmental - 10,495 -
investment Income 30,144 17,214 54,699
TOTAL REVENUES 30,144 374,971 54,699
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:
Principal 1,185,000 320,000 410,000
Interest 116,415 26,200 428,860
Fiscal Charges - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,301,415 346,200 B38,860
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,271,271) 28,771 (784,161)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:
Special Revenue 1,301,415 - 808,070
Capital Projects - - -
Enterprise - - -
Operating Transfers Out:
Special Revenue - - -
Capital Projects - - -
Enterprise - - -
Trust and Agency - - -
Proceeds of Refunding Bonds - - -
Payment of Refunding Bonds - - “
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 1,301,415 - B08,070
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES 30,144 28,771 23,909
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 433,536 256,109 911,981
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 463,680 3 284,880 5 935,890
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Exhibit C-2

Street Parking Totals
Sewermains  Watermains Sidewalks improvements Lots 2001 2000

3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - 5 347,262 $ 379,665
432,007 184,914 707,771 3,591,647 146,612 5,062,951 4,596,572

- - - - - 10,495 7,865

10,159 - 37,439 264,165 2,373 416,193 513,432
442,166 184,914 745,210 3,855,812 148,085 5,836,901 5,497,534
316,927 132,357 460,000 2,475,366 80,415 5,380,065 5,275,001
80,154 73,967 140,262 1,314,946 21,537 2,212,341 1,987,776
11,876 - 9,866 115,928 - 137,670 B75
418,957 206,324 610,128 3,906,240 101,952 7,730,076 7,263,452
23,209 {21,410) 135,082 (50,428) 47,033 (1,893,175) (1,765,918)

- - - 361,671 - 2,471,156 2,505,880

- 56,363 149,631 599,180 - 805,174 93,941

26,279 585 - - - 26,874 -
- - - (293,831) - (293,831) (474,471)
(2,011) {153,275) (118,804) (120,398) {3,070) (397,658) (61,077)
- - - - - - (592,916)

- - - (24,578) - {24,578) -

- - - 6,090,880 - 6,090,880 -

- - - {1,850,000) - (1,050,000) -

24,268 {96,317) 30,727 5,562,924 (3,070) 7,628,017 1,471,357
47,477 (147,727} 165,809 5,512,496 43,963 5,734,842 (294,561)
351,823 450,658 863,188 7,007,138 {2,135) 10,272,298 10,566,859

$ 389,300 $ 332,931 $1,028,897 § 12,519,634 $§ 41,828 $ 16,007,140 $ 10,272,298

53



ASSETS

Cash and Investments
Receivables {Net of Allowances
for Uncoltectibles);
Taxes
Accounts
Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governments
Cash - Restricted

TOTAL ASBETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Custamer Deposits
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Urweserved, Undesignated
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(WIiTH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2000)

Civic Center

Tax Community  Miscellaneous Building Highway
Increment Development Construction  Construction  Construction
$ 4,805,791 $ - $ - % 431175 $ 1,715,280
26,430 - - - -
- - 86,310 - -
. 4,617 . - -
$ 4832221 § 4817 § 86310 § 431175 & 1,715,280
$ 4,350 % 600 % 1,038 & 2,086 % 1285517
- 4,017 85,271 - -
26,282 - - - .
30,632 4,617 86,310 2,066 125,517
4,801,589 - - 429,109 1,589,763
4,801,589 - - 429,109 1,589,763
$ 4832221 % 4617 $ 86310 § 431,175 § 1,715280
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Exhibit D-1

Bismarck/
Street Parking Mandan
Sewermains  Watermains Sidewalks  Improvemenis Lots Visitors Riverfront Totals
Construction  Construction  Consfruction  Construction  Construction Center Enhancement 2001 2000
$ 120,962 % - % - 3 - $ 71475 & 17,140 § 99816 § 7,270638 $ 4,262,638
- - - - - - - 26,430 31,097
- - B - - 65,680 - 151,880 116,187
- - - - - - - - 2,135
- - - - - - - 4,617 24,690
- - 796,152 - - - - 796,152 938,152
$ 129,952 3 - $ 796,152 i - $ 71475 $ 82829 § 99,816 $ 8,249 827 $ 5,374,809
$ - 8 - % 268107 & 79573 - % 79413 % - % 580665 $ 231,880
- 281,186 193,986 3,779,504 - - - 4,343,964 4,891,270
- . - - . . - 26,282 21,870
- - 796,152 - - - - 796,152 938,152
- 281,186 1,258,245 3,859,077 - 79,413 - 5,727,063 6,083,172
129,052 {281,186) (462,093)  (3,858,077) 71,475 3,416 99,816 2,522,764 (708B,273)
129,952 {281,186) {462,093} {3,859,077) 71475 3416 99,816 2,522,764 (708,273}
$ 128,952 5 - $ 796,152 $ - 5 71475 % 82829 $ 989,818 $ 8,249,827 $ 5,374,899
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

REVENUES
Taxes
Special Assessments
Intergovernmental
Investment Income
Rentals
Miscelianeous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay:
Public Works
Special Assessments
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:
Special Revenue
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Enterprise
Operating Transfers Out;
General Fund
Special Revenue
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Trust and Agency
internal Service
Enterprise
Special Assessment Bond Proceeds
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING

Miscellaneous

Civic Center

SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND

OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - ENDING

Tax Community  Construction Building Highway

Increment Development Grants Conslruction Construction

$ 1,057,885 § - 8 - 5 -8 -

- 1,221,326 348,342 - -

221,738 - - - 43,488

- - - - 35,000

1,279,623 1,221,326 348,342 - 78,488

328,408 1,164,737 336,192 30.891 363,614

328,408 1,164,737 336,192 30,891 363,614
950,218 56,589 12,150 {30,891) {285,126)

- - - 460,000 1,500,000

214,588 - - - -

(10,542) (52,305) {3,854) - -

- {3,020} {5,849) - -

- (1,216} {2,355} “ -

- {(48) (92) - -

(5,976) - - - -

188,070 (56,588} (12,150} 460,000 1,600,000

1,148,288 - - 429,109 1,214,874

3,653,301 - - - 374,889

$ 4801589 § - § - § 428108 51,580,763
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Exhibit D-2

Street Parking Bismarck/Mdn
Sewermains  Walermains Sidewalks improvements Lots Visitors Riverfront Tolals

Construction  Construction  Construction  Construction  Construction Center Enhancement 2001 2000
kS - & - & - 5 - 3 - § - $ - $ 1,057885 § 1038202
79,070 647,017 12,509 104,114 - - - 842,710 -
- - - 3,506,195 - 150,000 - 5,225,863 2,353,585
- - - - 3,428 - - 268,654 340,698
“ - - - 6598 - - 698 795
- - - 667 - 4,774 - 40,441 131,629
79,070 647,017 12,509 3,610,876 4,126 154,774 - 7,436,251 3,865,508
- - - - 4,289 189,501 39,271 2,457,900 3,512,480
291,370 476,962 511,125 8,206,317 - - - 9,484,774 6,642,555
291,370 476,862 511,125 8,206,317 4,289 189,501 39,271 11,942,674 10,155,035
{212,300) 170,055 (498,616) (4,594,341) {163) (34,727} (38,271) {4,506,423) {6,288,126)
- - - 112,087 - - - 2,072,087 1,514,348
2,011 153,275 118,904 120,398 3,070 - - 397,658 61,077
20,247 - - - - - - 20,247 1,032,000
148,119 - - 110,000 - - - 472,707 265,618
- - - - - - - {66,701) (15,532}
- - - - - - - (8,869) {151,644}
- (56,363) {149,631} {599,180) - - - {805,174) (93,941)
. {20,247) - - - - - {20,247) (1,032,600)
- - - - - - - {3,571} (345,010}
- - - - - - - (140) -
- - - - - - - {5,976) (119,405)
1,644,253 - 416,570 3,627,618 - - - 5,685,439 3,881,095
1,811,630 76,665 385,843 3,370,921 3,070 - - 7,737,460 5,096,606
1,598,330 246,720 {112,773} {1,223,420) 2,807 (34,727) (39,271) 3,231,037 (1,192,520)
(1,469,378) (527,906) (348,320} {2,635,657) 68,568 38,143 139,087 (708,273) 484,247
$ 129,952 § (281,186} § (462,083) & (3,859,077) % 71475 &% 3,418 § 99816 $ 2,522,764 & {708,273)
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2001

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2000)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowances
or Uncollectibles)
Special Assessments
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid Insurance
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Cash and Investments:
Customer Deposits
Fixed assets heid for resale
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS
Land
Buildings and System
Accurmnulated Depreciation-Buildings and System
improvements Other than Buildings
Accumuiated Depreciation-improvements Other than Building
Machinery and Equipmert
Accumuiated Depreciation-Machinery and Equipment
FIXED ASSETS (NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION)

TOTAL ASSETS
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Airport

Airport Flightline
$ 3,499,642 $ 296456
139,750 52,164
- 24,101
10,509 1,576
3,649,901 374,297
3,801,177 -
3,615,611 -
(2,052,536) -
45,047,989 233,984
{15,680,424) (34,515)
858,085 61,212
{699,217} (56,704)
34,880,685 203,977
$ 38,530,586 $ 578,274




Exhibit E-1

{Continued on next page)

Water & Parking
Solid Waste Sewer Authority Totals
Utility Utility Lots 2001 2000

$ 7,714,563 $ 21,322,866 $ 460,543 $ 33,294,070 $ 31,884,775
102,519 270,206 - 564,639 867,622

- 25,980 - 25,990 5113

- - - - 1,147,938

- 20,817 - 44,918 99,340

810 11,325 - 24,220 36,597
7,817,892 21,651,204 460,543 33,953,837 34,041,385

- 2,723,303 - 2,723,303 2,805,203

- 20,347 - 20,347 75,358

- 2,743,650 - 2,743,650 2,880,561

892,888 1,868,294 1,203,152 7,765,511 7,700,511
3,860,528 34,870,000 9,128,926 51,475,065 43,809,644
(393,024) (9,245,492) (3,5613,834) (15,204,886) (14,110,073}
3,479,192 72,986,251 1,049,197 122,796,613 118,036,651
(1,493,949) (23,300,767) (1,007,048) (41,526,703) (38,846,371)
3,905,106 4,831,126 36,813 9,692,341 9,949,419
(1,976,600) (2,978,423) (36,813) (5,747,757) (6,069,319)
8,274,140 79,030,989 6,860,393 129,250,184 120,470,462

$ 16,092,032 $ 103,425,843 $ 7,320,936 $ 165,947,671 $ 157,392,408




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2001

{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2000)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Lease Fayable
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets:

Customer Deposits Payable

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences
Lease Fayabhle
Accrued Closure/Post Closure Costs
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Fund Equity
Contributed Capital:
State Government
Federal Government
Developers
intergovernmental
TOTAL CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Retained Earnings (Deficit)
Unreserved
TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS
FTOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
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Airport

Airport Flightline
$ 242,757 $ 4,767
7.815 1,385
250,572 6,152
40,030 24,821
40,030 24,821
290,602 30,973
1,199,799 -
20,707,007 -
1,334,398 272,762
23,241,204 272,762
14,998,780 274,539
14,998,780 274,538
38,239,984 547,301
$ 38,530,586 $ 578,274




Exhibit E-1

{Continued from previous page)

Water & Parking
Solid Waste Sewer Authority Totals
Utility Utility Lots 2001 2000
$ 7,568 1,603,062 $ - $ 1,858,154 892,593
26,905 - - 26,905 -
15,207 789,220 - 813,627 920,344
- 48,617 - 48,617 4,687
49,680 2,440,899 - 2,747,303 1,817,624
- 2,723,302 - 2,723,302 2,805,203
160,695 159,685 - 385,131 390,059
98,353 - - 98,353 -
394,206 - - 394,206 311,286
653,254 159,585 - 877,690 701,345
702,934 5,323,786 - 6,348,285 5,324,172
- - - 1,199,799 1,199,799
624,970 13,672,455 - 35,004,432 36,280,509
- 24,269 - 24,269 24,269
540,680 45,756,348 10,047,648 57,951,846 57,658,207
1,165,660 59,453,072 10,047 648 94,180,346 95,162,784
14,223,438 38,648,985 {2,726,712) 65,419,030 56,905,452
14,223,438 38,648,985 (2,726,712) 65,419,030 56,905,452
15,389,098 98,102,057 7,320,936 158,599,376 152,068,236
$ 16,092,032 $ 103,425,843 $ 7,320,936 $ 165,947,671 $ 157,392,408
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services:
Sales of Gas and Gl
Sales of Parts and Supplies
Water Sales
Sanitation Fees
Utitities and Miscellaneous Sales
Landing Fees and Airport Services
Rentals
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services
Administration
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME {LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Intergovernmental
Special Assessments
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets
investment Income
Interest Expense
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)

INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (QUT):
General Fund
Debt Service
Enterprise
Capital Projects
General Fund
Special Revenue
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Enterprise
TOTAL CPERATING TRANSFERS

NET INCOME (LOSS)

DEPRECIATION ON ASSETS ACQUIRED
WITH CAPITAL GRANTS

RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING

RETAINED EARNINGS - ENDING
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Alrport
Airport Flightline
- 584,357
34,013 1,309
987,225 89,135
1,271,957 79,565
2,293,195 754,406
1,426,192 713,594
234,030 13,629
1,305,308 7,617
3,055,530 734,840
(762,335) 19,566
1,555,897 “
8,916 543
145,834 13,159
1,710,647 13,702
8948312 33,268
(42,426) (11,278}
{42,426) {11,278)
805,886 21,990
876,554 -
13,216,340 252,549
14,998,780 274,539




Exhibit E-2

Water & Parking
Solid Waste Sewer Authority Tolals
Utility Utility Lots 2001 2000

3 - $ 116,420 - 3 700,817 3 608,721
- 113,869 - 113,869 88,187

- 7,192,141 - 7,192,141 6,352,132
3,696,507 4,377,856 - 8,073,363 7,746,699
2,700 103,864 - 141,886 137,779
- - - 1,076,360 1,037,470
9,983 14,556 781,162 2,157,223 2,094,285
3,708,190 11,918,706 781,162 19,455,659 18,025,273
2,485,830 4,784,707 248,431 9,668,754 8,339,932
88,380 290,362 289,807 916,208 744,181
461,299 2,482,643 235,700 4,582,567 4,204,669
3,045,508 7,557,712 773,938 15,167,629 13,288,782
662,681 4,360,994 7,224 4,288,130 4,736,481
10,506 97,329 - 1,663,732 6,412,526
- 266,972 - 266,972 -
52,637 (44,655) - 17,441 36,633
377,411 1,174,351 14,237 1,724,992 1,976,489

- (43,328) - (43,328) {49,159)
440,554 1,450,669 14,237 3,628,809 8,376,489
1,103,235 5,811,663 21,461 7,917,939 13,112,980
- 42,163 - 42,163 775
- - - - 582 916
- - - - 750,000
- - 5,976 5,976 119,405

(46,841) (128,452) - (228,997} {(111,081)

. - - - {(121,729)
- (26,874} - (26,874) -

. (258,119) (214,588) (472,707) (265,618)

- - - - (750,000)
{(46,841) {371,282) {208,612) {680,439) 214,658
1,056,384 5,440,381 (187,151} 7,237,500 13,327,638
- 399,524 - 1,276,078 1,021,023
13,167,044 32,809,080 (2,539,561) 56,905,452 42,556,791
3 14,223,438 $ 38,648,885 {2,726,712) $ 65,419,030 5 56,805,452
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
{WiTH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

Airport
Airpor} Flightline
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received From Customers and Users 3 2,580,644 3 760,511
Cash Paid to Suppliers {1,230,051) (487,707)
Cash Paid to Employees (437,348} (233,874)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 913,245 38,930
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental Revenue 1,555,887 -
Transfers From Other Funds - -
Transfers {to) Other Funds {42,426) {11,278}
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,513,471 (11,278}
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Lease Payment - -
Interest Paid - -
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 8,916 543
Purchase of Fixed Assets (33,850) -
Canstruction {1,758,253) -
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED ) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,783,187} 543
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
interest Received 145,834 13,159
NET CASH PROVIDED USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 145,834 13,159
NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 789,363 41,354
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING 2,710,279 255,102
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING 3,480 642 206,456

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income {Loss) {762,335) 19,566
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense 1,385,308 7.617
{Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 287,448 6,105
{Increase) Decrease in Due From Cther Funds -

14,513

{Increase) Decrease in Inventories -

{Increase) Decrease in Prepaid lems {1,757) 298

increase (Decrease) in Accounis Payable (690} (11,112)
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds (3,907} {692}
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable (823} 2,637

increase (Decrease) in Closure/Post Closure Cosls - -

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 1,675,580 19,364
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3 913,245 $ 38,930

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCE ACTIVITIES:

Contributions of fixed assets from government $ - $ -
Construction of Fixed Assets Contributed
Through Capital Project Funds 3 - $ -
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Exhibit E-3

Waler & Parking
Solid Waste Sawer Authority Totals
Utility Utility Lots 2001 2000
$ 4,758,467 12,004,918 3 781,162 $  20,885702 $ 17,120,329
(1,500,863} (3,104,207) {538,238) {6,861,066) (5.680,682)
(1,182,786} {1,692,682) - {3,556,690) (3,398,625)
2,064 818 7,208,029 242,924 10,467,946 8,041,022
10,506 87,329 - 1,663,732 8,412,526
- 42,163 5,976 48,139 1,463,006
{46,841) (413,445) (214,588) (728,578) {1,248,438)
{36,335) (273,953} (208,612} 983,293 6,627,184
(125,258) - - {125,258) {425,000}
- (43,328) - (43,328) (49,159)
52,837 (44,855) - 17,441 36,633
{205,206) (38,460) - (277,516) {2,521.411)
{443,179) (9,136,843) - (11,338,275) (13,086,602)
{721,006) {8,263,286) - (11,766,0386) {16,045,539)
377 411 1,174,351 14,237 1,724,892 1,976,489
377,411 1,174,351 14,237 1,724,992 1,976,489
1,684,888 (1,154,859) 48,549 1,408,295 599,156
6,029,675 22,477,725 411,894 31,884,775 31,285,619
7,714,563 21,322,866 460,543 33,294,070 31,884,775
862,681 4,360,994 7,224 4,288,130 4,736,491
461,299 2,482,643 235,700 4,582 567 4,204,669
{19,857} 8,408 - 282,105 242,994
1,070,134 77,804 - 1,147,938 (1,147,938}
- 39,808 - 54,422 {58,616}
249 13,588 - 12,376 {11,763)
(199,557) 336,982 - 125,623 (221,895)
{4,094) (94,514) - (103,207} 243,141
11,043 {17,785) - (4,928) 9,953
82,920 - - 82,820 43,986
1,402,137 2,847,035 235,700 6,179,816 3,304,531
3 2,064,818 7,208,029 $ 242,824 3 10,467,946 % 8,041,022
3 - 28,012 3 - % 29,012 5 20,135
% - 264,628 $ - 3 264,628 $ 1,529,420
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2001

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2000)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Taxes Receivable
Accounts Receivable
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Reserve-Pending Claims
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY:
Retained Earnings-Unreserved
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
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Employee Liability
Insurance Insurance
$ 2,837,314 $ 2,589,130

- 1,542

16,028 -

$ 2,853,342 $ 2,590,672
$ 647 $ -
- 1,115

250,000 259,817
250,647 260,932
2,602,695 2,329,740
2,602,695 2,329,740
$ 2,853,342 $ 2,590,672




Exhibit F-1

Unemployment Totals
Compensation Revolving 2001 2000
$ 87,450 $ 216,678 $ 5,730,572 $ 5,582,446
- - 1,542 4,190
- 6,643 22,671 6,199
$ 87,450 $ 223,321 $ 5,754,785 $ 5,592,835
$ - $ 188,644 $ 189,291 $ 203,408
- - 1,115 3,427
- - 509,817 318,400
- 188,644 700,223 525,235
87,450 34,677 5,054,562 5,067,600
87,450 34,677 5,064,562 5,067,600
$ 87,450 $ 223,321 $ 5,754,785 $ 5,592,835
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

OPERATING REVENUES
Employer Contributions

Charges for Services
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Costs of Services

Administration
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income
In Lieu of Taxes
Recovery of Anticipated Claims
Taxes
Miscellaneous
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES/{EXPENSE)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS FROM (TO) OTHER FUNDS
General Fund
Special Revenue
Capital Projects
Trust and Agency
General Fund
TOTAL TRANSFERS FROM (TO) OTHER FUNDS

NET INCOME (LOSS)
RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING

RETAINED EARNINGS - ENDING
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Employee Liability
Insurance Insurance
2,052,460 $ -
2,052,460 -
2,035,476 427,931
385 641
2,035,861 428,572
16,599 {428,572)
195,167 237,582
- 132
- 2,197
6,974 167
202,141 240,078
218,740 {188,494)
(28,584) {(24,899)
(28,584) {24,899)
190,156 {213,393)
2,412,539 2,543,133
2,602,695 3 2,329,740




Exhibit F-2

Unemployment Totals
Compensation Revolving 2001 2000
- 2,052,460 1,857,376
- - 1,663
- 2,052,460 1,859,039
11,679 2,475,086 1,970,154
~ 1,026 958
11,679 2,476,112 1,871,112
{11,679) {423,652) (112,073)
4,429 437,178 294,910
- 132 2,838
. - 272,191
- 2,197 136,873
- 9,445 16,586 -
4,429 9,445 456,093 706,812
{7,250) 9,445 32,441 594,739
2,067 5,232 7,299 (21,158)
113 113 20,000
140 140 -
452 452 .
- (53,483) -
2,772 5,232 (45,479) {1,158)
(4,478) 14,677 (13,038) 593,581
91,928 20,000 5,067,600 4,474,019
87.450 34,677 5,054,562 5,067,600
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNRS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts From Customers and Users
Receipts From Employer
Payments to Suppliers
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Miscellaneous
Taxes
in Lieu of Taxes
Transfers (to) Other Funds
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest Received
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income {Loss)

Adjustments To Reconcile Operating income fo
Net Cash Pravided (Used) by Operating Activities:

(Increase) Decrease In Taxes Receivable

{Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable

Increase {Decreass} in Accounts Payable

Increase {Decrease) in Deferred Revenue

Increase {Decrease) in Estimated Pending Claims
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Employee Liability
Insurance Insurance
$ - 5 2,820
2,037,092 -
{2,035,874) (239,639}
1,218 {236,819)
6,974 167
- 2,197
- 132
(28,584) {24,899)
{21,610) {22,403)
195,167 237,582
195,167 237,582
174,775 (21,640)
2,662,539 2,610,770
2,837,314 2,589,130
16,509 (428,572)
- 2,645
(15,368) -
(13) -
- (2,309)
- 191,417
(15,381) 191,753
$ 1,218 & {236,819)




Exhibit F-3

Unemployment Totals
Compensation Revolving 2001 2000
$ - 4,435 3 7,255 $ 1,663
- - 2,037,092 1,870,024
(17,481) {13,841) {2,306,835) {1,862,141)
(17,481) {9,406) (262,488) 9,546
- 9,445 16,586 -
- - 2,197 136,873
- - 132 2,838
2772 5,232 (45,479) {1,158)
2,772 14,677 {26,564) 138,553
4,429 - 437,178 284,910
4,429 - 437,178 284,910
{10,280) 5,271 148,126 443,009
97,730 211,407 5,682,446 5,139,437
87,450 216,678 5,730,572 5,582,446
{11,679) - {423,652) {112,073}
- - 2,645 (624)
- (1,104) (16,472) 7,558
(5,802) (8,302) (14,117} 193,040
. . (2,309) (139)
- - 191,417 {78,216)
(5,802) {9,406) 161,164 121,619
5 (17,481) {9,408) $ {262,488) 3 9,546
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ASSETS

Cash and Investments
Taxes Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Customer Deposits
TOTAL ASSETS

CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
PECEMBER 31, 2001
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2000)

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable
Due to Employees
Due to Other Entities
Deferred Revenue

Customer Deposils
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:

Expendable
Trust
Agency Funds Funds
Deferred

Firemen's Sick Arena Tree
Pension Leave Revolving Memeorial
§ 1,254 $ 6927862 $ 1,019,191 $ 14,589
6,741 - - -
5817 - 55,031 -
- 54,852 - -
- - 239,500 -
3 13,912 § 747,614 $1,313,722 $ 14,589
3 - ] - $ 38,858 5 -
- 747 614 - -
9,165 - - -
4,747 - - -
Securities Lending Collateral - - - -
- - 239,500 -
13,912 747,614 278,358 -
Unreserved, Undesignated - - 1,035,364 14,589
TOTAL FUND BALANCES - “ 1,035,364 14,588
$ 13,912 $ 747,614 $1,313,722 3 14,589

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
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Exhibit G-1

Expendable Trust Funds Pension Trust Funds
Library Christmas  Lewis & Clark City Totals
Memorial Lights Pansion 2001 2000
$ 3,937 $ 23,460 34,031,524 51,736,921 55,197,499
- - 12,397 24,935 42,332
- - 13,043 81,484 63,835
- - - 54,852 82,279
- - - 239,500 71,074
$ 3,937 23,460 $ 34,056,964 $ 15,958,494 52,137,692 55,457,019
$ - - - 38,858 13,000
- - 9,458,356 14,063,543 15,942,809
- - - 9,165 5,368
- - 9,036 18,065 34,152
- - 1,939,324 2,707,410 3,272,490
- - - 239,500 71,074
- - 11,406,716 17,076,541 18,339,893
3,937 23,460 22,650,248 35,061,151 36,117,126
3,937 23,460 22,650,248 35,061,151 36,117,126
$ 3,937 $ 23460 34,066,964 52,137,692 55,457,019
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2000)

REVENUES

Intergovernmental

Charges for Sales and Services
Rentals

Investiment Income

Miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Highways and Streets
Culture and Recreation
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating Transfers in:
Debt Service
Operating Transfers Qut:
General Fund
Capital Projects
internal Service

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES -ENDING

Arena Tree
Revolving Memorial

$ - -

478,983 -

256,100 -

52,129 733

- 4,355

787,212 5,088

- 375

582,042 -

. 582,042 375

205,170 4,713
(87,577) {14,250)

(452) -
{(88,029) (14,25_0)
117,141 (9,537)

918,223 24,126

$ 1,035364 14,589




Exhibit G-2

Library Christmas Lewis & Clark Totals
Memorial Lights Expedition 2001 2000

3 - $ - $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ -
- - - 478,983 487,164

- - - 256,100 231,781

362 - - 53,224 30,799

5,293 - - 9,648 9,410

5,655 - 5,000 802,955 759,154

- - - 375 1,156

6,160 1,118 - 589,320 498,881

8,160 1,118 - 589,695 500,037

(505) (1,118) 5,000 213,260 259,117

- 24,578 - 24 578 -
- - - (101,827) (9,313)

- - - - 345,010

- - - (452) -

“ 24,578 - (77,701) 335,697

(505) 23,460 5,000 135,559 594,814

4,442 - _ - 946,791 351,977

3 3,837 $ 23,460 $ 5,000 $ 1,082,350 $ 946,791
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

FIREMEN'S PENSION AGENCY
ASSETS
Cash
Receivables
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Entities

DEFERRED SICK LEAVE
ASSETS
Cash
Due From Other Funds
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to Employees

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash
Receivables
Due From Other Funds
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Entities
Due to Employees
TOTAL LIABILITIES

CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Exhibit G-3

Balance Balance

January 1, December 31,
2001 Additions Deletions 2001

$ 481 396,858 396,083 $ 1,254
11,666 279,813 278,821 12,658
3 12,147 676,669 674,904 $ 13,912
$ 12,147 676,669 674,904 3 13,912
$ 580,660 304,614 192,512 § 692,762
82,279 - 27,426 54,853
$ 662,938 304,614 216,938 $ 747,615
$ 662,939 304,614 219,938 $ 7478615
$ 581,141 701,470 588,595 § 694,016
11,666 279,813 278,821 12,658
82,279 - 27,426 54,853
§ 675,086 981,283 894,842 $ 761,527
$ 12,147 676,669 674,904 $ 13,912
662,939 304,614 219,938 747,615
$ 675,086 981,283 894,842 $ 761527
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Exhibit G-4
CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2000)

TOTALS
City Palice
Pension Pension 2001 2000
ADDITIONS
CONTRIBUTIONS:
Employer $ 375227 $ 109,231 $ 484,458 $ 1,254,290
Employee 436,209 333,736 769,945 495,151
INVESTMENT INCOME:
Loss on investments (1,2086,609) (727,957) (1,934,566) {1,221,932)
Interest and Dividends 905,935 430,522 1,336,457 1,384,000
Securities Lending Income 08,191 39,848 138,039 207,967
(202,483) (257,587) {460,070) 370,035
Less: Investment Expense (77,294) (41,2186) (118,510) (126,831)
lLess: Securities Lending Expenses (91,597) (37,085) {128,682) {197,972)
Net investment income (loss) (371,374) (335,888) (707,262) 45,232
TOTAL ADDITIONS 440,062 107,079 547,141 1,794,673
DEDUCTIONS
Administration 18,032 12,373 30,405 44,904
Benefits 1,230,411 458,363 1,688,774 1,466,359
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 1,248,443 470,736 1,719,179 1,611,263
OTHER FINANCING SQOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:
General Fund 9 3,145 3,154 -
Special Revenue - 1,562 1,562
Capital Projects 3,571 - 3,571 -
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund (16,325) {11,458) {27,783) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (12,745) (6,751) (19,4986) -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS {821,126) {370,408) (1,191,534) 283,410
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING 23,471,374 11,698,961 35,170,335 34,886,925
NET ASSETS - ENDING § 22,650,248 $ 11,328,553 $ 33,978,801 $ 35,170,335
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Exhibit H-1
CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY SOURCE
DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

2001 2000
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
Land 1,689,788 $ 1,689,788
Buildings 46,154,050 45,683,901
Improvements Other than Buildings 51,777 65,418
Machinery and Equipment 17,310,001 19,025,470
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 65,205,616 $ 66,464,577
INVESTMENTS IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
General Fund 8,783,167 $ 9,040,852
Special Revenue Funds 16,070,247 16,433,917
State Government 105,274 103,274
Federal Government 2,115,786 2,115,786
Capital Projects Funds 36,849,480 36,676,385
Trust and Agency Funds 1,167,185 1,085,876
Donations 108,477 108,477
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 65,205,616 $ 66,464,577
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Municipat Court
Assessing
Administration and Management
Fiscal and Information Services
Attomey
Human Resources
Common Software
City/County Office Building
Bismarck-Mandan Visitors Bureau
Planning
E/H Transit System
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police
Fire and Inspections
Combined Communications Center
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS:
Roads and Streets
Engineering
Forestry
TOTAL HIGHWAYS AND STREETS

HEALTH:
ND Health Tracks
Bismarck Burleigh Public Health
TOTAL HEALTH

CULTURE AND RECREATION:
City Auditorium
Civic Center
Library
TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Exhibit H-2

General Fixed General Fixed
Assets Assetls
11112001 Additions Deductions 12/31/2001
% 11,972 kS - 3 11,972 3 -
36,571 - 36,571 -
22,677 11,353 22,677 11,353
440,673 - 241,240 199,433
5,898 - 5,898 -
9,116 - 9,116 .
- 94,927 - 94,927
2,859,859 6,891 7,050 2,959,700
814,975 189,500 - 1,004,475
36,240 - 11,499 24,741
1,607,434 211,038 114,439 1,794,033
6,035,415 513,709 460,462 6,088,662
4,722,744 275,629 724,508 4,273,865
4,770,352 48,700 229,506 4,589,546
923,746 - 56,409 867,337
10,416,842 324,329 1,010,423 9,730,748
4,899,713 470,486 872,001 4,498,198
376,275 20,422 97,700 298,997
355,589 55,254 23,806 387,037
5,631,577 546,162 993,507 5,184,232
1,379 - 1,379 -
47,004 - 25,196 21,808
48,383 - 26,575 21,808
3,471,798 - - 3,471,798
29,875,274 228,729 244,534 29,960,469
10,885,288 - 137,389 10,747,899
44,332,360 229,729 381,923 44,180,166
% 66,464,577 $ 1,613,929 $ 2,872,880 $ 65,205,616
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Exhibit H-3
CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Improvements Machinery
Other than and
Land Bulidings Buildings Equipment Total
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Administration and Management § - 8 - % - % 11,353 % 11,353
Fiscal and Information Services - - - 199,433 199,433
Common Software - - - 94,927 94,927
City/County Office Building - 2,923,597 - 36,103 2,859,700
Bismarck-Mandan Visitors Bureau 200,000 804,475 - - 1,004,475
Planning - - - 24,741 24,741
E/H Transit System 108,421 795,444 - 890,168 1,794,033
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 308,421 4,523,516 - 1,256,725 6,088,662
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police 499,500 2,759,940 51,777 962,648 4,273,865
Fire and Inspections 245,767 1,865,325 - 2,378,454 4,589,546
Combined Communications Center - - - 867,337 867,337
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 745,267 4,725,265 51,777 4,208,439 9,730,748
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS:
Roads and Streets - - - 4,498,198 4,498,198
Engineering - - - 298,997 298,997
Forestry - - - 387,037 387,037
TOTAL HIGHWAYS AND STREETS - - - 5,184,232 5,184 232
HEALTH:
Bismarck Burleigh Public Health - - - 21,808 21,808
TOTAL HEALTH - - - 21,808 21,808
CULTURE AND RECREATION:

City Auditorium 11,500 3,454,948 - 5,350 3,471,798
Civic Center 300,800 28,778,408 - 881,463 29,960,469
Library 324,000 4,671,915 - 5,751,984 10,747,899
TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION 636,100 36,905,269 - 6,638,797 44,180,166
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 1,689,788 $ 46,154,050 $ 51,777 $ 17,310,001 $ 65,205,618
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

DECEMBER 31, 2001

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2000

AMOUNT AVAILABLE AND TC BE PROVIDED
FOR RETIREMENT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION
BONDS, AND GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT:

Amount Available in Debt Service Funds:

Special Assessment with Governmental Commitment

Highway Construction

Sales Tax Bonds

Motel, Liquor, Restaurant Bonds
Total Amount Available

AMOUNT TO BE PROVIDED:
Retirement of General Long-term Debt:

Special Assessment with Governmental Commitment

Sales Tax Bonds

Motel, Liquor Restaurant Bonds

Highway Construction

Compensated Absences

Employee Termination Benefits
Total to be Provided

Total Available and to be Provided

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT PAYABLE:
General Obligation Bonds Payable:
Highway Construction 1985
Highway Construction 1991
Highway Construction 1992
Highway Construction 1996
Total General Obligation Bonds Payable

Revenue Bonds Payable;
Sales Tax Bonds
Motel, Liquor, and Restaurant
Total Revenue Bonds Payable

Special Assessment Bonds Payable,
with Governmental Commitment:
Sidewalks Bonds
Refunding Series A thru 2
Total Special Assessment Bonds Payable

Accrued Liability for Compensated Absences
Accrued Liability for Employee Termination Benefits
Total Miscellaneous Payable

Total General Long-Term Debt Payable
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2001 2000
14,322,690 8,672,958
284,880 253,822
463,680 433,536
835,890 911,981
16,007,140 10,272,208
21,772,310 20,227,041
798,498 2,016,464
7,494,110 7,928,019
62,942 411,178
1,292,164 1,275,192
185,214 277,821
31,605,238 32,135,715
47,612,378 42,408,013
115,000 170,000
- 50,000
155,000 295,000
75,000 160,000
345,000 665,000
1,265,000 2,450,000
8,430,000 8,840,000
9,695,000 11,290,000
2,880,000 2,920,000
33,215,000 25,980,000
36,095,000 28,900,000
1,292,164 1,275,192
185,214 277,821
1,477,378 1,653,013
47,612,378 42,408,013
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Consultants » Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of City Commissioners
City of Bismarck
Bismarck, North Dakota

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of City of Bismarck, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2001, and have issued our report thereon dated March 8, 2002. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Bismarck's general-purpose financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Govermment Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Bismarck's internal control over financial reporting
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general-purpose
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all reportable
conditions that also considered to be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk
that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the general-purpose financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

1050 East Interstate Ave * PO Box 1914 * Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1914 « 701 255.1091 # Fax 701 224 1582
Offices in Arizona, Iowa, Minnesota, Montana, North Dakota and South Dekota ~ Equal Opportunity Employer



However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to
management of the City of Bismarck, in a separate letter dated March 8, 2002.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Commission, and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

ér&, %c‘./ﬂ? cof

Bismarck, North Dakota
March 8, 2002

98




P
L

Consultants * Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCEIN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Board of City Commissioners
City of Bismarck
Bismarck, North Dakota

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of City of Bismarck with the types of compliance requirements described in the
U 8. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its
major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2001. City of Bismarck's major federal program is
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs is the responsibility of City of Bismarck's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on City of Bismarck's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Bismarck's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on
City of Bismarck's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, City of Bismarck complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2001.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of City of Bismarck is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Bismarck’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133,

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal
control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of
one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in
relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the
internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Commission, and federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

é:&_ %CUNL? LLP

Bismarck, North Dakota
March 8, 2002
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CITY OF BISMARCK
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Federal
Pass-Through CFDA Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Granter/Program Title Number  Expenditures
Department of Agriculture
North Dakota Forest Service
America the Beautiful 10.664 % 700
Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 1,221,326
Department of Justice
Direct
COPS Universal Hiring Program 16.710 116,664
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant #4 16.592 101,707
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant #5 16.592 29,918
Total CFDA #16.592 131,625
Abused Adult Resource Center 16.579 24,346
North Dakaota Attorney General
Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness 24,022
Juvenile Justice 16.540 71,496
Total Department of Justice 368,153
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - page 2

Agency or Federal
Pass-Through  CFDA Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Department of Transportation
Direct
Airport Improvement Project 20.106 292,017
Airport Improvement Project 20.106 237,641
Airport Improvement Project 20.106 258,806
Airport Improvement Project 20.106 362,575
Total CFDA #20.106 1,351,039
FTA - E/H Transit 20.507 743,808
North Dakota Department of Transportation
MPO 20.203 348,342
North Dakota Forestry Service
Lewis & Clark Community Tree Planting Grant 20.205 5,000
Total CFDA #20.205 353,342
Alcohol Prevention 20.600 10,930
Occupant Protection Plan 20.600 10,160
Video Survellance Equipment 20.600 18,225
Alcohol Saturation Patro} 20.600 3,879
STOP 20.600 9,902
Total CFDA #20.600 33,096
Total Department of Transportation 2,501,285
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - page 3

Agency or Federal
Pass-Through  CFDA Federal

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number  Expenditures

Federal Emergency Management Agency

North Dakota Department of Emergency Management
Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness 83.516 5,333
Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness #2 83.516 16,155
HMEP-Air Monitoring Training 83.516 11,500
Storm Repairs-Fire & Inspection 83.516 14,028
Storm Repairs-Forestry 83.516 86,689
Storm Repairs-Police 83.516 22,788
Storm Repairs-Engineering g3.516 1,716
Storm Repairs-Roads & Streets 83.516 76,091
Storm Repairs-Library 83.516 1,320
Storm Repairs-Airport 83.516 83,311
Storm Repairs-Solid Waste 83.516 10,506
Storm Repairs-Water & Sewer Utility 83.516 19,016

Total Federal Emergency Management Agency 348,453

Department of Health and Human Services

North Dakota Department of Health and Human Services
Breast & Cervical Cancer Screening 03.919 43,357
Immunization 93.268 18,591
Tobacco Prevention & Control 63.283 70,003
HIV Screening 93.940 460
ND Health Tracks 93.991 69,175
Ryan White CARE 93.917 1,208
Student Health Manager 93.994 3,187
Maternal & Child Health/OPOP 93.004 41,905
Health Alert Network 93.283 3,076
Bmk/Bur Public Health School Nurse 93.994 6,373
CPR Instruction 2,454
Time Study 7,794
Stand for Children 2,632
Tobacco Settlement 8,754

Total Department of Health and Human Servcies 278,969

United States Fireman's Association

North Dakota Firemen's Association
Anti-Terrorism Training 13,189

Total Federal Financial Assistance

S 4732075
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.

NOTE 2 - AGENCY OR PASS-THROUGH NUMBERS

Certain pass-through entities have not provided us with the identifying numbers, therefore, they are not included

in this schedule.
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CITY OF BISMARCK

BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

2.

7.

8.
9.

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of the
City of Bismarck.

No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit
of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Bismarck were
disclosed during the audit.

No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of Bismarck
expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs.

Audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for the City of Bismarck are reported in
Part C of this schedule.

The programs tested as major programs were COPS Universal Hiring Program CFDA #16.710;
Highway Planning & Construction CFDA #20.205; and Federal Transit Grant CFDA #20.507.

The threshold for distinguishing a Type A program was $200,000

The City of Bismarck was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT - NONE

C. FINDINGS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM -~ NONE
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